


































































































Policy

100
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Graton Fire Protection District Mission
Statement - 6

Graton Fire Protection District Mission

Statement

100.1   GRATON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT MISSION STATEMENT

The GRATON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT mission is to be a leading emergency

service organization by:

• Meeting the service requirements of our community in fire prevention, fire
suppression, rescue and education.

• Utilizing and improving the dedication and skills of our people.

• Continually improving all of our services and operations.

In carrying out this mission, the GRATON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT will:

• Give top priority to firefighter safety and environmental concerns.

• Encourage the development of our professional and personal members.

• Work as a team to take full advantage of our skills, knowledge and creativity.

• Communicate openly and honestly to our members and community to inspire
trust and confidence.



Policy

101
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Standards of Conduct - 7

Standards of Conduct

101.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

As a basic standard of firefighting with the GFPD, all personnel have an obligation to conduct their

official duties in a manner that serves the public interest, upholds the public trust, and protects

District resources. To this end, all personnel have the responsibility to:

(a) Perform their duties to the very best of their abilities and in a manner that is efficient
and meets the needs of the public.

(b) Demonstrate integrity, honesty, and ethical behavior in the conduct of all District
business.

(c) Ensure that personal interests do not come in conflict with official duties and avoid both
actual conflicts of interest and the appearance of conflicts of interest when dealing
with vendors, customers, and other individuals doing business with the District.

(d) Ensure that all District resources, including funds, equipment, apparatus, and other
property, are used in strict compliance with District policies and solely for the benefit
of the District and the public at large.

(e) Conduct all dealings with the public, city/county/state/federal firefighters, and other
organizations in a manner that presents a courteous, professional, and service
oriented image of the District.

(f) Treat the public and other members fairly and equitable, without regard to age,
disability, ethnicity, national origin, political affiliation, race, religion, gender, sexual
orientation, or any other factor unrelated to District business.

(g) When responding to calls, firefighters shall be fully equipped, fit, and able to perform
assignments.

(h) Officers and Engineers shall set an example for other members and are responsible to
ensure that their activities and decisions pertaining to the operations of the District are
consistent with the following; all policies, common sense, and high moral standards.

(i) Use the chain of command.

(j) Take every opportunity to help one another develop into a team.

(k) Disregard for general safety rules will not be tolerated.

(l) If a member of your team is having difficulties, take the initiative to help him/her.

(m) Offer your help to anyone doing anything. One person works, all work.

(n) Demonstrate compassion and caring for everyone served as well as member's peers.

(o) Have a positive outlook.

(p) Suggest positive solutions to encountered problems.

(q) Have integrity and display ethical behavior.

(r) Exhibit exceptional personal hygiene. Keep clean. Maintain head and facial hair that
does not interfere with duties and OSHA standards.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Standards of Conduct

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Standards of Conduct - 8

(s) Be aware of personal actions on/off duty while displaying anything identifying as part
of the GFPD. This can include, but is not limited to, T- shirts, uniform shirts, hats,
badges, ID cards, vehicle placards, and vehicle window stickers.

(t) Wear suitable clothing for any event; ask if unsure. Firefighters are professionals in a
highly respectful and public profession.

(u) Please review the entire SOG for additional details.



Policy

200
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Fire Service Authority - 10

Fire Service Authority

200.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

This policy describes the legal authority of the Department and the individual members.

200.2   POLICY

It is the policy of the Graton Fire Protection District to limit its members to only exercise the authority

granted to them by law.

While the Graton Fire Protection District recognizes the authority of members granted to

them, members are encouraged to use sound discretion in the exercise of their authority, and

this department does not tolerate abuse of authority.

200.3   STATUTORY BASIS OF THE DISTRICT

The Graton Fire Protection District is established under and governed according to the laws of

the State of California.  The Graton Fire Protection District is a Special District of the County of

Sonoma and for the State of California.  It receives funds to operate from taxes generated from

property within the District, State tax funds, and donations from individuals and firms within the

District.  (Health and Safety Code §13862)

200.4   RIGHTS AND POWERS OF THE DISTRICT

The Fire District, acting through its Board of Directors, shall have and exercise all rights and

powers, expressed or implied, necessary to carry out the purposes and intent of Fire Protection

District Laws (Health & Safety Code §13800 et seq.), including but not limited to the following

powers:

1. To sue and be sued.

2. To acquire any property, including water facilities for providing fire protection, within
the Fire District by any means: to hold, manage, occupy, dispose of, convey, and
encumber the property, and to create a leasehold interest in property for the benefit
of the District.

3. To acquire by eminent domain any property necessary to carry out any of its powers
or functions.

4. To appoint necessary employees, to define their qualifications and duties, and to
provide, if necessary, a pay schedule for performance of their duties.

5. To employ counsel.

6. To enter into and perform all necessary contracts pursuant to Article 53 (commencing
with Section 20810) of Part 3 of Division 2 of the Public Contract Code.

7. To adopt a seal and alter it at pleasure.

8. To adopt ordinances following the procedures of Article 7 (commencing with Section
25120) of Chapter 1 of Part 2 of Division 2 of Title 3 of the Government Code.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Fire Service Authority

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Fire Service Authority - 11

9. To establish and enforce rules and regulations and/or policies and procedures for the
administration, operations, and maintenance of the services listed in Section 13862
of the Health & Safety Code.

10. To enter into joint powers agreements pursuant to Chapter 5 (commencing with
Section 6500) of Division 7 of Title 1 of the Government Code.

11. To provide insurance pursuant to part (commencing with Section 989) of Division 3.6
of Title 1 of the Government Code.

200.5   ORGANIZATIONAL FUNCTIONS

This department is authorized to perform the following:

(a) Fire Protection and Prevention

(b) Rescue

(c) Emergency Medical Response

(d) Hazardous materials Response

(e) Any other situations relating to the protection of lives and property.

200.6   FIREFIGHTER POWERS

Firefighters are sworn members of this department and have the following authority:

(a) Participate in a wide range of emergency and rescue activities, including EMS,

extrication and heavy rescue

(b) Perform fire suppression duties, including the suppression of structural, aircraft,

wildland and other types of fires

(c) Investigate causes of fires

(d) Collect and preserve evidence when a fire is of a suspicious origin

(e) Possess peace officer status when serving as a fire investigator or Fire Marshal (Penal

Code § 830.37)

(f) Perform specialty services, including hazardous materials response, technical rescue,
water rescue and additional services as authorized by the Fire Chief

(g) Provide fire code enforcement inspection and plan review services

(h) Provide public education and fire prevention activities and services

200.7   CONSTITUTIONAL REQUIREMENTS

When exercising their authority, members shall observe and comply with every person’s clearly

established rights under the United States and California Constitutions.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Fire Service Authority

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Fire Service Authority - 12

200.8   SUPERVISORY AUTHORITY

Any chief officer may relieve a member under his/her command from duty when, in his/her

judgment, an offense committed is sufficiently serious to warrant immediate action. A report

of such action shall be made immediately through the appropriate channels to the appropriate

Duty Officer, followed by written documentation of the charges, in accordance with department

procedures. All such processes shall comply with established rules, regulations and applicable

collective bargaining agreements.



Policy

201
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Chief Executive Officer - 13

Chief Executive Officer

201.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

This policy identifies the education, experience or certifications desired for the Fire Chief.

201.2   POLICY

It is the policy of the Graton Fire Protection District to have a highly qualified Chief Executive

Officer.

201.3   CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

1. The Fire Chief shall be appointed by the Board as an Officer and Member of the
Department. The Fire Chief shall serve at the pleasure of the Board and may be
discharged by the Board without cause.  If terminated or demoted by the Board, the
Fire Chief shall no longer be a Member of the Department, unless so authorized by
the Board.

2. The Fire Chief shall be sufficiently qualified by training and experience in firefighting
and emergency medical procedures and shall have the ability to command personnel
and hold their respect and confidence. The Fire Chief shall possess at least a
valid Class "C" Commercial for Firefighter personnel issued by the California State
Department of Motor Vehicles.

3. The Fire Chief shall have such duties, powers and functions as are provided by these
Policies and Procedures.

4. The Fire Chief shall be responsible to the Board of Directors for all administration and
operational activities of the Department.

5. The Fire Chief shall insure proper management, training and discipline of the Members
of the Fire Department.

6. The Fire Chief shall make written and verbal reports as may be required by the Board.

7. The Fire Chief shall maintain an adequate number of Members in the Department as
approved by the Board.

8. The Fire Chief shall appoint Officers, Members, Trainees and Cadets for the proper
functioning of the Department, subject to confirmation by the Board.

9. A newly appointed Fire Chief may appoint or reassign Officers for the proper function
of the Department subject to confirmation by the Board.

10. If the Fire Chief retires, said retired Fire Chief must step away from the Department
for one (1) calendar year. Then said retired Fire Chief may have the option of applying
as a firefighter.

11. The Fire Chief shall make recommendations regarding real property, apparatus, and
equipment to the Board.  In this regard, the Fire Chief shall recommend to the Board of
Directors the selection of any new station site; changes in the location or the existing
station; construction of any new station, purchase of new apparatus, hose, equipment;



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Chief Executive Officer

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Chief Executive Officer - 14

and the disposal of surplus materials- equipment or property not necessary for use in
the operation of the Department.  Upon approval by the Board, the Fire Chief shall
acquire the property, apparatus and/or equipment in such a manner as is designated
by the Board.

12. The Fire Chief will be responsible for all personnel, records and general efficiency of
the Department including but not limited to:

(a) Incident Reports - monthly and annually for each Member.

(b) Records relating to the Safety Program and the Injury Prevention Program.

(c) Any other records necessary to properly report to the Board or any other lawful
authority.

(d) Purchase orders and competitive bidding reports.  The originals shall be
delivered to and maintained by the Board with copies on file in the Department.

(e) Equipment assigned to all Members.

(f) Equipment Inventory.

(g) Equipment Mileage and Repair.

(h) Drill Reports monthly and annually for each Member.

(i) Dispatch Log.

13. The Fire Chief will attend each regularly scheduled meeting of the Board and will
submit a report to the Board either orally or in writing including, but not limited to, the
following information:

(a) Fire, Drill and Administrative Reports.  The original Fire, Drill and Administrative
Reports for the preceding month will be delivered by the Fire Chief to the Board
at each regularly scheduled meeting.

(b) Fire Prevention activities.

(c) Inventory, maintenance, replacement, repair or loss of district equipment.

(d) Additions and/or deletions in the membership of the Department.

(e) Any other information required by the Board pertinent to the operation of the
Department.

14. The Fire Chief may discipline, discharge or reassign any Member of the Department
for cause in accordance with these Policies and Procedures.  Any such action shall
be documented in writing.

15. The Fire Chief shall determine the apparatus, equipment, and personnel to respond
to any request for automatic or mutual aid.

16. The Fire Chief or, in the Fire Chief's absence, the highest-ranking Officer shall
determine the department's participation in any request for mutual aid, be it in Sonoma
County, out of Sonoma County, or out of the State, in accordance with the guidelines
of the Board



Policy

202
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

BOARD of DIRECTORS - 15

BOARD of DIRECTORS

202.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The Purpose of this Policy is to define the roles and responsibilities of the Graton Fire Protection

District board of Directors

202.2   GENERAL PROVISIONS

(a) The Board shall be responsible for the Policies and Procedures of the District.

(b) The Board shall evaluate these Policies and Procedures and revise them as needed.

(c) The Board shall furnish buildings and real property necessary to house all firefighting
equipment, medical equipment and apparatus as deemed necessary by the Board.

(d) The Board shall provide firefighting and medical equipment and apparatus in
accordance with the needs of the District as deemed necessary by the Board.

(e) The Board shall require that all real property, equipment and apparatus be maintained
in good working condition at all times.

(f) The Board shall appoint a qualified and experienced Fire Chief to administer and
operate the Department.

(g) The Board shall determine the appropriate number of Members to be in the
Department.  The Board has determined that the current number of Members shall
not exceed 30.

(h) It is the intent of the Board to ensure that an ongoing training program is established
and maintained.

(i) In general, a Board Member should not respond to any fire, medical or other type of
emergency, unless requested by the Incident Commander, and shall not interfere with
the orderly fulfillment of the duties of any Department Officer, or other Members of
the Department.

(j) The Board shall maintain all necessary forms of insurance coverage for the District
including hazard, liability, equipment, District vehicle, and worker's compensation.

(k) The Board shall provide an adequate safety program and an effective written injury
prevention program.  As required by SB198, the Board has adopted the Graton Fire
Protection District's Health and Safety Manual, a copy of which is on file at the Station.

(l) The Board shall have Membership in all organizations it deems necessary to provide
pertinent information to the District.

(m) The Board shall hold regular Board meetings the second Tuesday of each month,
at 7:00 pm, at the Graton Fire Station.  In the event of a holiday, the regular Board
meeting shall be held on the following Tuesday of the month.  The agenda for regular
Board meetings shall be posted at the Graton Fire Station no later than 72 hours
prior to such meetings.  The Board President shall be responsible for developing and
managing the agenda for all meetings.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

BOARD of DIRECTORS

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

BOARD of DIRECTORS - 16

(n) The Board may hold special meetings at any time.  The agenda for the special Board
meetings shall specify the time and place of the meeting. Special meetings shall be
posted 24 hours prior to such meeting.

(o) Emergency situations involving matters upon which prompt action is necessary due
to the disruption or threatened disruption of public facilities may be held without
complying with the 24-hour posting.

(p) The Board President may desire the services of a recording secretary for any of its
public meetings. The Board will reimburse the recording secretary for providing such
services as detailed in the Reimbursements Section of this document.

(q) A Treasurer's assistant may be appointed by the Treasurer with the approval of the
Board.  The Treasurer’s assistant shall serve at the pleasure of the Treasurer and may
be discharged by the Treasurer. The Board will reimburse the Treasurer's assistant for
providing such services as detailed in the Reimbursements Section of this document.

(r) Board meetings shall be conducted according to the latest edition of Robert's Rules
of Order, Revised.  District Policies shall prevail whenever they are in conflict with
Robert's Rules of Order, Revised.

(s) A majority of the Fire District Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business.  The Board shall only act by ordinance, resolution or motion.  Except as
specifically provided to the contrary by statute or other law, a recorded vote is required
on each action.  (Health & Safety Code §13856)

(t) The Board President shall serve as chairperson at all Board meetings.  The Board
President shall have the same rights as the other Members of the Board in voting,
introducing motions, resolutions and ordinances, and any discussion of questions that
follow these actions.

(u) In the absence of the Board President, the Vice President shall serve as chairperson
over all Board meetings.  In the absence of the Board President and Vice president,
the Board Secretary shall serve as chairperson over the Board Meetings.

202.3   CLOSED SESSIONS

(a) The Board may hold closed sessions for any of the following purposes

(a) To consider any personnel matters including the appointment, evaluation, or
dismissal of any Officer or any other Member of the Department.  The Board
must publicly report any action taken during the closed session by roll call vote.

(b) To confer with District legal counsel within the proper limits of attorney-client
privileges.

(c) To protect any records which are exempt from public disclosure.

(d) To confer with any District negotiator prior to the purchase, sale, exchange or
lease of real property in order to instruct the negotiator regarding the price and
terms of the transaction.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

BOARD of DIRECTORS

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

BOARD of DIRECTORS - 17

(b) If the Board plans to hold a closed session, such must be duly noted on the agenda for
that meeting.  The reason(s) for such a closed session must be stated in the agenda.

(c) When it is determined by a roll call vote of at least three (3) Board Members that a
closed session is needed during a meeting where no closed session was announced in
the agenda, the presiding Officer shall publicly announce the reason(s) for the closed
session prior to and after the closed session.

(d) No matters other than those given in the reason(s) to hold a closed session shall be
discussed or acted upon during the closed session.

(e) Actions taken in closed session shall be summarized in the public minutes of the
Board meeting as long as personnel and legal matters are not compromised; matters
discussed in closed session

202.4   LIMITS OF BOARD MEMBER AUTHORITY

(a) The Board has broad powers as provided by law only when a quorum of the Board is
convened in a legally constituted public meeting.

(b) The Board is the unit of authority.  Apart from the normal function as a part of the
Board, no Board Member has any individual authority and no individual Board Member
may commit the District to any policy, act or expenditure.

(c) No Board Member shall enter into any business with the District.

(d) No individual Board Member, by virtue of holding office shall exercise any
administrative responsibility with respect to the operation of the Fire Department, its
Officers and Firefighters.

202.5   COMMUNITY RESPONSIBILITIES OF BOARD MEMBERS

(a) Each Board Member shall represent the entire population of the District.

(b) Board Members shall ensure that all Board business is transacted in an open and
ethical manner.

202.6   MEETING AGENDA FORMATS

Meeting Agendas shall conform to the Following:

202.6.1   REGULAR MEETING

ORDER OF BUSINESS

REGULAR MEETING

(a) Call to order

(b) Pledge of allegiance

(c) Roll call

(d) Additions or corrections to the agenda

(e) Closed Session



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

BOARD of DIRECTORS

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

BOARD of DIRECTORS - 18

(f) Scheduled and unscheduled personal appearances: During this period the Board of
Directors will hear anyone who desires to speak on subjects not listed on the agenda.
  As a matter of policy, the Board will not make a decision unless it is of a routine nature,
which may be turned over to the staff for disposition.  Please limit your comments to
five (5) minutes please state your name and address for the minutes.

(g) Approval of minutes

(h) Bills and warrants

(i) Treasurer’s report

(j) Correspondence

(k) Fire Chief's report:  drills, alarms, etc.

(l) Purchase requests

(m) Committee reports

(n) Old business

(o) New business

(p) Adjournment

202.6.2   SPECIAL MEETING

ORDER OF BUSINESS

SPECIAL MEETING

(a) Call to order

(b) Pledge of Allegiance

(c) Roll call

(d) Unscheduled personal appearances.  (During this period the Board provides anyone
who desires an opportunity to address the Board on any item listed in this notice 
  Please limit your comments to five minutes.  Please state your name and address
for the minutes.)

(e) Closed Session

(f) (Subject matter of special meeting.)

(g) Adjournment



Policy

202
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Oath of Office - 19

Oath of Office

202.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

This policy establishes the oath of office for all sworn personnel of this department.

202.2   OATH OF OFFICE

Upon employment, all sworn personnel shall be required to affirm the oath of office expressing

commitment to support and defend the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of

the State of California (CA. Const. art. XX, § 3 and Government Code § 3102). The oath shall

be as follows:

I, [employee name], do solemnly swear (or affirm) that I will support and defend the Constitution

of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California against all enemies, foreign

and domestic; that I will bear true faith and allegiance to the Constitution of the United States

and the Constitution of the State of California; that I take this obligation freely, without any mental

reservation or purpose of evasion; and that I will well and faithfully discharge the duties upon

which I am about to enter.



Policy

203
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual - 20

Policy Manual

203.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The Policy Manual of the Graton Fire Protection District is hereby established and shall be referred

to as the “Policy Manual.” The Policy Manual is a statement of the current policies, rules, and

guidelines of this department. All department members are expected to conform to the provisions

of this Policy Manual. All prior and existing policies, manuals, orders, and regulations that are

in conflict with this Policy Manual are revoked, except to the extent that portions of the existing

policies, manuals, orders, and other regulations that have not been included herein shall remain

in effect where they do not conflict with the provisions of this Policy Manual.

203.2   POLICY

Except where otherwise expressly stated, the provisions of this Policy Manual shall be considered

guidelines. It is recognized that fire and rescue work is not always predictable, and circumstances

may arise that warrant departure from these guidelines.

It is intended that the provisions of this manual be viewed using an objective standard, taking

into consideration the sound discretion entrusted to the members of this department under the

circumstances reasonably available at the time of any incident.

203.2.1   DISCLAIMER

The provisions contained in the Policy Manual are not intended to create an employment contract,

nor any employment rights or entitlements. The policies contained within this manual are for the

internal use of the Graton Fire Protection District and shall not be construed to create a higher

standard or duty of care for civil or criminal liability against the District, its officials, or members.

Violations of any provision of any policy contained within this manual shall only form the basis for

administrative action, training, or discipline. The Graton Fire Protection District reserves the right

to revise any policy content, in whole or in part.

203.2.2   SEVERABILITY

In the event that any term or provision of this Policy Manual is declared illegal, invalid, or

unenforceable by any court or any federal or state government agency, the remaining terms and

provisions that are not affected shall remain in full force and effect. If any provision of the Policy

Manual is found to be in conflict with a local, state, or federal law, District policy, or collective

bargaining agreement, such law, District policy, or collective bargaining agreement shall take

precedence over that provision of the Policy Manual.

In the event that any of the terms or provisions of the Policy Manual are determined to conflict with

any portion of a collective bargaining agreement, the Department will seek to resolve the conflict.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual - 21

203.3   RESPONSIBILITIES

The responsibility for the contents of this Policy Manual rests with the Fire Chief. Since it is not

practical for the Fire Chief to prepare and maintain the Policy Manual, the following delegations

have been made:

203.3.1   FIRE CHIEF

The Fire Chief shall be considered the ultimate authority for the provisions of this manual and

shall continue to issue, as needed, directives that shall modify those provisions of the manual to

which they pertain. Any directive so issued shall remain in effect until such time as they may be

permanently incorporated into the manual.

203.3.2   STAFF

Staff shall consist of the following:

• Fire Chief

• Chief Officers

• Company Officers

Staff shall review all recommendations regarding proposed changes to the manual and make

recommendations to the Fire Chief on final manual changes.

203.3.3   OTHER PERSONNEL

Any member suggesting revision of the contents of the Policy Manual shall forward the suggestion

through the chain of command, in writing, to his/her Supervisor.

203.4   FORMATTING CONVENTIONS FOR THE POLICY MANUAL

The purpose of this section is to provide examples of abbreviations and definitions used in this

manual.

203.4.1   ACCEPTABLE ABBREVIATIONS

The following abbreviations are acceptable substitutions in the manual:

• Policy Manual sections may be abbreviated as “Section 106.4” or “§ 106.4.”

203.4.2   DEFINITIONS

The following words and terms shall have these assigned meanings, unless it is apparent from

the content that they have a different meaning:

Adult - Any person 18 years of age or older.

District - The District of Graton.

Civilian - Members and volunteers who are not sworn employees.

Department/GFPD - The Graton Fire Protection District.

Employee - Any person employed by the Department.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual - 22

Fire Code - The 2015 edition of the International Fire Code as adopted by the State of California

and the incorporated California amendments (Health and Safety Code § 18928).

Firefighter/Sworn, appointed, or elected - Those members, regardless of rank, who perform

fire suppression duties as part of their primary duties as sworn, appointed, or elected members

of the Graton Fire Protection District.

Manual - The Graton Fire Protection District Policy Manual.

May - Indicates a permissive, discretionary, or conditional action.

Member - Any person employed or appointed by the Graton Fire Protection District, including:

• Full- and part-time employees

• Sworn, appointed, or elected firefighters

• Reserve firefighters

• Civilian employees

• Volunteers

On-duty - Member status during the period when he/she is actually engaged in the performance

of his/her assigned duties.

Order - A written or verbal instruction issued by a superior.

Rank - The job classification title held by a firefighter.

Shall or will - Indicates a mandatory action.

Should - Indicates a generally required or expected action, absent a rational basis for failing to

conform.

Supervisor - A person in a position of authority regarding hiring, transfer, suspension, promotion,

discharge, assignment, reward, or discipline of other department members, directing the work of

other members, or having the authority to adjust grievances. The supervisory exercise of authority

may not be merely routine or clerical in nature but requires the use of independent judgment.

The term "supervisor" may also include any person (e.g., firefighter-in-charge, lead or senior

worker) given responsibility for the direction of the work of others without regard to a formal job

title, rank, or compensation.

203.5   DISTRIBUTION OF THE POLICY MANUAL

Copies of the Policy Manual shall be distributed to the following:

• Fire Chief

• Each fire station

• Fire Board



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Policy Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Policy Manual - 23

An electronic version of the Policy Manual will be made available on the department network for

access by all employees. The electronic version will be limited to viewing and printing specific

chapters or sections. No changes shall be made to the electronic version without authorization

from the Fire Chief or the authorized designee.

203.6   POLICY MANUAL ACCEPTANCE

As a condition of employment, all members are required to read and obtain necessary clarification

of this Policy Manual. All are required to sign a statement of receipt acknowledging that they have

received a copy or have been provided access to the Policy Manual and understand that they are

responsible to read and become familiar with its content.

203.7   REVISIONS TO POLICIES

All members are responsible for keeping abreast of all Policy Manual revisions. All changes to the

Policy Manual will be posted on the department Intranet.

The Fire Chief will forward notice of revisions to the Policy Manual as needed to all personnel

via electronic mail. Each member shall acknowledge receipt by return email, review the revisions,

and seek clarification as needed.

Each supervisor/manager will ensure that members under his/her command are aware of any

Policy Manual revisions.



Policy

309
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Solicitation of Funds - 46

Solicitation of Funds

309.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that fundraising activities associated with the Department

are consistent with its mission, values and legal status. This policy applies to all fundraising

activities involving the Department or the use of the department name, insignias, equipment or

facilities.

309.1.1   DEFINITIONS

Definitions related to this policy include:

Fundraising - The collection of money through donations, sales or event programming for the

purpose of charitable donation or organizational budget enhancement.

309.2   POLICY

It shall be the policy of this department that all fundraising activities involving on-duty members

or use of department equipment, and that provide financial benefit to the Department, must be

authorized by the Fire Chief or the authorized designee prior to initiating solicitations.

Authorized fundraising activities should not indicate or imply that a donation will influence services

provided by the Department. Members engaged in fundraising activities are expected to act

ethically regarding the solicitation of funds, the interaction with donors or potential donors and the

maintenance of fundraising records.

Members are prohibited from soliciting any goods or services from local businesses, groups

or individuals for the purpose of providing incentives, prizes or give-aways to attendees of

department-sponsored or hosted events, or to events when members attend as representatives

of the Department.

309.3   PROCEDURES

Fundraising activities or events involving the Department should incorporate the following

elements:

(a) Compliance with applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations

(b) Compliance with department and governing-body policies

(c) A benefit to the Department that is consistent with the department mission

(d) An accurate description of the purpose for which funds are requested.

(e) A limitation on the frequency of solicitations to avoid placing undue pressure on donors

(f) Identification of the individual soliciting funds as a volunteer, a member of this

department or a hired solicitor



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Solicitation of Funds

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Solicitation of Funds - 47

(g) An admonishment that encourages donors to seek independent advice if there is

reason to believe that a proposed gift might significantly affect the donor’s financial

position, taxable income or relationship with other family members.

(h) The assurance that donor requests to limit the frequency of contacts, to prohibit

solicitation by telephone or other technology and to reduce or cease sending printed

or electronically transmitted material concerning the Department will be honored

(i) Respect of the donors’ privacy and a commitment that the Department will not sell or

otherwise make available donors’ names and contact information

Commercial or corporate sponsorship of fundraising activities or events may be allowed provided

that it has been preapproved by the Fire Chief or the authorized designee.

309.4   DEPARTMENT-SPONSORED EVENTS

The following also apply to department-sponsored fundraising events:

(a) Fundraising events should be clearly identified by a sign indicating the name, product,

service, price and purpose of the event.

(b) At least one member should be present during the entire event.

(c) Individuals participating in the event should be briefed and supervised to ensure their

activities are consistent with this policy.

(d) Individuals participating in the event should not be compensated by a commission or

a percentage of the amount collected.

(e) Funds raised should be deposited no later than the next business day.

(f) All donors should receive a receipt for the amount of their donation.

(g) Fundraising activities should not delay emergency response or otherwise compromise

the mission of the organization.

(h) Fundraising that takes place on public-owned or private property will be done with the

knowledge and approval of the property custodian or owner.

(i) Fundraising that occurs on public ways or near roadways will be coordinated with the

responsible law enforcement agency for the protection of pedestrians, motorists and

event participants.

309.5   FUNDRAISING ON BEHALF OF OTHERS

Fundraising for the benefit of a non-profit charitable third party (e.g., blood drive, burn victims,

surviving families) having no direct affiliation with the Department is permissible provided that the

fundraising standards and event prerequisites listed above are followed.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Solicitation of Funds

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Solicitation of Funds - 48

Any materials associated with a third-party fundraising activity shall be approved by the Fire Chief

or the authorized designee prior to the activity. In addition, there should be a written agreement

between the Department and the organizers of the activity that includes:

(a) Written proof that the event is for a charitable purpose.

(b) Assignment of responsibility to the organizers for all direct costs incurred for the event.

(c) Assignment of responsibility to the organizers for the collection and reporting of any

applicable taxes.

(d) Written instructions regarding the maintenance of funds raised on behalf of others.

The funds shall be maintained in a separate fund and not commingled with other

department funds.

The Department reserves the right to require additional conditions including, but not limited to,

evidence of insurance coverage or appropriate indemnification.



Policy

310
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Physical Asset Management - 49

Physical Asset Management

310.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines for maintaining a system of inventory and

accountability over the department’s physical assets.

310.1.1   DEFINITIONS

Definitions related to this policy include:

Physical assets – Any tangible items of value, including but not limited to:

• Materials.

• Machinery.

• Tools and equipment.

• Apparatus, ambulances, and command and support vehicles.

• Office supplies.

• Furniture.

• Firefighting tools and appliances, including hose, power tools, and communications
devices.

Physical asset management – The process of tracking and maintaining the department’s

physical assets.

310.2   POLICY

It is the policy of the department to accurately inventory, track, maintain, and dispose of its physical

assets owned by the Department in a manner that controls costs, avoids waste, and promotes

the department's mission.

310.3   RESPONSIBILITIES

The [Administrator] or the authorized designee should be responsible for the inventory,

maintenance, and disposal of department physical assets, including:

(a) Maintaining compliance with federal, state law, and local laws regarding physical asset
management, inventory control, and reporting requirements.

(b) Maintaining compliance with any grant requirements associated with physical asset
purchases.

(c) Developing procedures for the implementation of this policy, including:

1. Procedures for disposal of all department-owned physical assets in accordance
with federal, state, and local law.

2. Procedures for safe disposal of hazardous waste.

3. Procedures for handling surplus and obsolete physical assets.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Physical Asset Management

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Physical Asset Management - 50

4. Procedures to inventory assets according to internal reporting deadlines (e.g.,
quarterly, annually).

(d) Developing a physical asset management plan to track the department's physical
assets and maintain accurate and complete records related to these assets. The plan
should include:

1. A minimum value of the physical assets that are subject to this policy, the plan,
and the implementing procedures.

2. An inventory control and recordkeeping system to account for the movement,
storage, maintenance, use, loss, damage, destruction, and disposal of the
department's physical assets.

3. Routine internal and external audit practices.

4. Procedures to access physical assets for reuse, transfer, recycling, or disposal.

(e) Designating members as appropriate to assist with inventory under the physical asset
management plan.

(f) Annual physical asset acquisition planning.

310.4   IDENTIFICATION AND TAGGING

Physical assets should be tagged using a bar code or other system to identify and locate the

items. Tags should be affixed in the same manner and location on each item, when feasible. The

following information regarding the tagged item should be maintained using the inventory control

system and method of recordkeeping established in the physical asset management plan:

(a) A description of the item, including but not limited to:

1. Make, model, and serial number

2. Physical dimensions and weight

3. Color, material, and other physically distinct qualities

4. Warranty and/or recall information, if any

(b) The specific location where the item can be found

(c) The acquisition date of the item, as well as the amount and funding source for the
acquisition

(d) The intended and actual use of the item

(e) The expiration of an item’s lease or loan terms

310.5   SURPLUS OR OBSOLETE ASSETS

When the department no longer utilizes a physical asset, the asset should be identified as surplus

or obsolete. If the physical asset retains value, the item should be stored as surplus or handled

in accordance with the procedures established pursuant to this policy. If the physical asset is

deemed obsolete, the item shall be disposed of in accordance with this policy.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Physical Asset Management

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Physical Asset Management - 51

310.5.1   STORAGE

When practicable, physical assets that retain value but are not being utilized should be stored in

lieu of disposal. Physical assets in storage are subject to routine inventory and revaluation. If the

physical asset’s value is less than the cost of storage, the Department should pursue disposal of

the item in accordance with this policy.

310.5.2   TRANSFERS

When a physical asset is transferred from one department to another, the value of the physical

asset should transfer with the asset. Interdepartment transfers shall be documented through the

inventory control and recordkeeping system implemented by the physical asset management plan.

310.6   LOSS, DAMAGE, OR DESTRUCTION

Loss, damage, or destruction of department physical assets shall be handled in accordance

with the procedures established pursuant to this policy and the Use of Department-Owned and

Personal Property Policy, as applicable.

310.7   USAGE MONITORING

Physical asset performance should be regularly monitored for functionality, utility, wear-and-tear,

and cost-effectiveness. Usage monitoring of the department’s physical assets should include the

duration of use (e.g., daily use and number of hours in use), user satisfaction, costs of operating

the asset, and the asset’s contribution to employee performance and overall productivity.

310.8   MAINTENANCE

Routine maintenance of physical assets should be proactive to limit interruption of the

department’s daily operations. Employees should report any physical asset performance issues

to a supervisor.

Maintenance requests and reports shall be recorded in the inventory control and recordkeeping

system implemented by the physical asset management plan. The Executive Board or the

authorized designee shall routinely evaluate maintenance expenditures to determine whether

continued maintenance is beneficial.

310.9   DISPOSAL

Physical assets slated for disposal should be evaluated for salvage value (e.g., items containing

reusable materials like aluminum or copper) or transferred or disposed of in accordance with the

procedures established pursuant to this policy.

310.10   INVENTORY AND REPORTS

Routine inventory of physical assets should be conducted for purposes of loss control, revaluation,

retagging, documenting asset movement and condition, disposition and acquisition planning, and

obtaining adequate insurance coverage.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Physical Asset Management

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Physical Asset Management - 52

All internal controls and inventories related to physical asset management shall be accurately

documented and subject to both internal and external audit. Inventory reports should include an

explanation of any discrepancies from the previous period.

All inventory documentation shall be retained and stored in accordance with the records retention

schedule.

310.11   TRAINING

Members and supervisors accountable for the proper care, use, transfer, maintenance, storage,

loss, and disposition of all department physical assets should receive training regarding their

responsibilities under the physical asset management plan.



Policy

311
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Purchasing and Procurement - 53

Purchasing and Procurement

311.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines for the purchasing and procurement of goods

and services.

311.2   POLICY

It is the policy of the department to conduct purchasing and procurement in an efficient and cost-

effective manner consistent with federal, state, and local laws, rules, and requirements in order to

protect the integrity of the department and maintain public trust.

311.3   PURCHASING COORDINATOR

The [Administrator] should designate a member to coordinate department purchases. The

member's responsibilities should include:

(a) Remaining familiar with and updating agency practices in accordance with applicable
federal, state, and local purchasing and procurement laws, rules, and requirements.

(b) Obtaining authorization from the Fire Chief or the authorized designee for each
purchase.

(c) Reviewing proposed purchases to determine the most appropriate method of
procurement.

(d) If the procurement method selected is one other than competitive bidding,
documenting why another method was selected.

(e) Assisting other members involved with the purchasing and procurement of goods or
services in following purchasing requirements and rules applicable to the method of
procurement.

(f) Forwarding all contracts and purchase orders to the Fire Chief or the authorized
designee for review, approval, and execution.

311.4   REVIEWS

The [Administrator] should ensure that a review of purchasing and procurement activities is

conducted annually to determine compliance with any applicable federal, state, and local laws,

rules, and requirements.



Policy

900
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Records Management - 75

Records Management

900.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

This policy provides guidelines for the management of all department documents, including those

in fire stations, to ensure that department records are maintained and available as needed. This

policy also provides guidance on the retention, disposition and security of records.

900.2   POLICY

It is the policy of the Graton Fire Protection District to promote the efficient and cost-effective

conduct of department business by reducing the number of records in active file areas, eliminating

unnecessary retention of duplicate or obsolete documents and providing for timely transfer of

inactive files in compliance with legal requirements.

900.3   CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS

The Fire Chief shall appoint a Custodian of Records, who will oversee the records management

program, including the records retention schedule. The Custodian of Records or the authorized

designee should:

(a) Remain familiar with the California Secretary of State Local Government Records

Management Guidelines.

(b) Identify what records the Department has, where the records are kept, the volume and

how the records are used.

(c) Maintain and update the department’s records retention schedule, including:

1. Preparing any amendments to the schedule and obtaining the necessary

approvals for the amendments.

2. Coordinating with the District district clerk to ensure all department records

are properly classified and that the retention periods are appropriate for each

document.

3. Maintaining a current version of the department’s records retention schedule

and making it available to members for reference.

(d) Coordinate the placement of inactive records in storage, including:

1. Maintaining a storage inventory.

2. Providing an annual reminder to Division Officers and section managers to

review files to determine if any records should be transferred to storage.

(e) Manage the destruction of department records, including:

1. Annually reviewing the records retention schedule and storage inventory list to

determine which records are eligible for destruction.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Records Management

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Records Management - 76

2. Providing a list to Division Officers and section managers of records eligible to

be destroyed.

3. Obtaining any required approvals for the destruction of eligible records.

4. Maintaining a list of records that have been destroyed.

(f) Ensure confidential and other sensitive records are stored or maintained to protect the

sensitive nature of the records.

(g) Process subpoenas and requests for records as provided in the Subpoenas, the

Release of Records and Public Records Act and the Patient Medical Record Security

and Privacy policies.

(h) Manage a document imaging or other process for bulky or rarely accessed records

with long retention periods.

(i) Establish rules regarding the inspection and copying of department records as
reasonably necessary for the protection of such records, including:

1. Identifying records or portions of records that are confidential under state or
federal law and not open for inspection or copying.

2. Maintaining a schedule of fees for public records as allowed by law.

(j) Determine how the department website may be used to post public records in
accordance with Government Code § 6253.

(k) Ensure that public records posted on the department website meet the requirements
of Government Code § 6253.10 including, but not limited to, posting in an open format
where a record may be retrieved, downloaded, indexed and searched by a commonly
used internet search application.

(l) Ensure that a list and description, when applicable, of enterprise systems (as defined
by Government Code § 6270.5) is publicly available upon request and posted in a
prominent location on the department website.

900.4   MEMBERS' RESPONSIBILITY

All members are expected to handle department records in a responsible manner and as provided

in this policy.

Members are responsible to ensure that records in their control are maintained as provided in the

records retention schedule.

900.5   SUPERVISORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

Supervisors at fire stations are responsible for the management of records at the fire station level.

The supervisors shall ensure that all records at the fire stations are retained in accordance with

this policy.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Records Management

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Records Management - 77

900.6   TRAINING

The Custodian of Records should coordinate with the Training Officer to provide training regarding

the records management program to the appropriate department members.



Policy

901
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Release of Records - 78

Release of Records

901.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

This policy establishes guidelines for the public to inspect and obtain copies of public records.

Inspection and release of records with protected health information is covered in the Patient

Medical Record Security and Privacy Policy.

901.2   POLICY

It is the policy of Graton Fire Protection District that records not exempt from disclosure by state

or federal law will be open for public inspection with the least possible delay and expense to the

requesting party (Government Code § 6253).

901.3   INSPECTING PUBLIC RECORDS

Public records are generally open to inspection during regular business hours.

For the most efficient service, any person who wishes to inspect public records should telephone

the Graton Fire Protection District to schedule an appointment.

Records that in part or whole are exempt from disclosure or require redaction will not be provided

for inspection. Upon written request, a redacted copy of the record may be produced as provided

in this policy.

901.4   PROCESSING REQUESTS FOR PUBLIC RECORDS

Any member of the public, including the media and elected officials, may obtain copies of

unrestricted records of this department by submitting a written and signed request for each record

sought and paying any associated fees (Government Code § 6253).

(a) All requests for records shall be forwarded to the Graton Fire Protection District
Custodian of Records for review and disposition. Information in the request should
include:

1. A statement that information is being requested under the California Public
Records Act.

2. A clear and specific description of the record being requested, including, if
possible, dates, subjects, titles, or authors of the documents requested.

3. If requesting a waiver of fees, a description of why the requestor believes a
waiver is in the public interest.

4. Requestor contact information, including name, address, phone, fax, and e-mail.

5. Any accommodation needed under the Americans with Disabilities Act.

(b) The processing of requests is subject to the following limitations:

1. All requests should be date stamped upon receipt and logged on the Public
Records Act request log.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Release of Records

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Release of Records - 79

2. The Custodian of Records or the authorized designee shall determine if the
requested record is available and, if so, whether the record is exempt from
disclosure.

(a) Either the requested record or the reason for nondisclosure will be
provided promptly but no later than 10 days from the date of request,
unless unusual circumstances preclude doing so.

(b) If more time is needed, an extension of up to 14 additional days may be
authorized by the Fire Chief or the authorized designee.

(c) If an extension is authorized, the Custodian of Records shall provide
written notice of the extension to the requesting party (Government Code
§ 6253(c)).

3. The Department is not required to create records that do not otherwise exist in
order to accommodate a request for information or records.

4. If the Custodian of Records or the authorized designee determines the
requested records should be disclosed, the records will be made available as
soon as reasonably practicable.

5. If the record requested is available on the department website, the requester
may be directed to the location on the website where the record is posted. If the
requester is unable to access or reproduce the record, a copy of the record shall
be provided promptly (Government Code § 6253).

6. Each page of any record released should be stamped in colored ink with the
official department stamp and should identify the individual to whom the record
was released.

7. Released records shall be logged on the Public Records Act request log.

901.5   RECORDS IN ELECTRONIC FORMAT

Upon request, the Department shall make available any public record in any electronic format

in which the Department holds the information or in the format requested if the format has been

used by the Department to create copies for its own use or for other agencies. The Department

may not provide the records only in electronic format unless specifically asked by the requestor

(Government Code § 6253.9(e))

901.6   FEES

A copy of a requested public record not exempt from disclosure shall be made available upon

payment of fees established by the Graton Fire Protection District governing body (Government

Code § 6253(b)).

The Custodian of Records may exercise discretion to waive all or part of the fee if the requestor

demonstrates that a waiver is in the public interest.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Release of Records

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Release of Records - 80

901.6.1   FEES FOR RECORDS IN ELECTRONIC FORMAT

The requestor shall bear the direct costs of duplication to produce a copy of a record in an

electronic format and shall also bear the programming costs involved to construct a record and

any computer services necessary if the request for electronic records is either (Government Code

§ 6253.9):

(a) For a record that is produced only at specific scheduled intervals.

(b) For a record that requires data compilation, extraction, or programming.

901.7   RELEASE RESTRICTIONS

In balancing the public’s right to access public records, the statutory individual right of privacy

and the need for the Graton Fire Protection District to be able to efficiently perform its duties,

the Legislature has established certain categories of records that may be exempt from public

disclosure. A complete list of statutory exemptions is found in the California Public Records Act.

Absent a valid court order or other statutory authority, the Public Records Act exempts certain

records from disclosure in whole or part. Those pertaining to the Graton Fire Protection District

include but are not limited to the following (Government Code § 6254):

(a) Preliminary drafts, notes, or interagency or intra-agency memoranda that are not
retained by the Graton Fire Protection District in the ordinary course of business,
provided that the public interest in withholding such records clearly outweighs the
public interest in disclosure. If a draft contains facts and recommendations, the facts
must be disclosed but the recommendations may be withheld.

(b) Records pertaining to pending litigation to which the Graton Fire Protection District
is a party or to claims made, but only until such litigation or claim has been finally
adjudicated or otherwise settled. The complaint, claim, records filed in court, records
that pre-date the suit, reports about projects or activities that ended in litigation, and
settlement records are subject to disclosure.

(c) Personnel, medical, or similar files, the disclosure of which would constitute an
unwarranted invasion of personal privacy.

1. Home addresses, home telephone numbers, personal cellular telephone
numbers, and birth dates of members are exempt from disclosure except in
certain circumstances as provided in Government Code § 6254.3.

(d) Records of complaints to or investigations conducted by the Graton Fire Protection
District for law enforcement purposes.

(e) Attorney-client discussions are confidential.

(f) Test questions, scoring keys, and other examination data used to administer a
licensing examination, examination for employment, or academic examinations.

(g) Contents of real estate appraisals or engineering or feasibility estimates and
evaluations made for or by the Graton Fire Protection District relative to the acquisition
of property or to prospective public supply and construction contracts, until all of the
property has been acquired or all contract agreements executed.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Release of Records

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Release of Records - 81

(h) Records whose disclosure is exempt or prohibited pursuant to provisions of federal
or state law, including but not limited to provisions of the Evidence Code relating to
privilege.

(i) Records that relate to archeological site information.

The Graton Fire Protection District retains the discretion to claim an exemption from public

disclosure for any record that does not qualify for a specific exemption under the Public Records

Act when the Graton Fire Protection District determines that the public interest served by not

making the record public clearly outweighs the public interest served by disclosure.

Records subject to exemption may nevertheless be made available for inspection if waiving the

exemption will serve the public interest, as determined by the Graton Fire Protection District on

a case-by-case basis. However, the Graton Fire Protection District’s determination to disclose a

record, which may otherwise be exempt from disclosure, does not constitute a waiver with respect

to any other records (Government Code § 6254.5).

When the Custodian of Records determines that a record is exempt and disclosure should be

denied, the Custodian of Records should contact legal counsel for the Department for further

guidance. If legal counsel concurs with denying disclosure of the record, the Custodian of Records

shall log the denial on the Public Records Act request log and provide a summary of the denial,

in writing, to the Fire Chief.

901.8   RELEASED RECORDS TO BE MARKED

Each page of any record released pursuant to this policy should be stamped in a colored ink or

otherwise electronically marked to indicate the department name and to whom the record was

released.



Policy

902
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Subpoenas - 82

Subpoenas

902.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to establish procedures for receiving, processing and responding to

summons and subpoenas to appear or to produce records or evidence.

902.1.1   DEFINITIONS

Definitions related to this policy include:

Subpoena - A time sensitive court order requiring a person or entity to appear at a particular time

and place to testify as a witness at a deposition, trial or hearing and/or to provide documents,

records or evidence in a legal proceeding.

Subpoena duces tecum - A time sensitive court order requiring a person to produce in court

specific documents or evidence.

Subpoena/Summons Request (SSR) log - The department log documenting the receipt of each

subpoena or summons delivered to the Department, and that includes the document’s source,

the date received and the date of response to a request to produce documents or delivery to a

member.

902.2   POLICY

It is the policy of the Graton Fire Protection District to make reasonable efforts to comply with

valid subpoena requests for records or evidence and personal appearances and to cooperate with

court processes.

902.3   PROCEDURE

All subpoenas should be directed to the Custodian of Records or the authorized designee.

902.3.1   CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS

The Custodian of Records and any authorized designees should receive training in proper intake

and processing of subpoenas. Members not designated by the Custodian of Records and properly

trained are not authorized to accept subpoenas for department records.

If the Custodian of Records determines that a subpoena or a request for public records involves a

request for a confidential record or relates to pending litigation against the Department or District,

the request should be promptly brought to the attention of the Fire Chief and legal counsel for

the Department.

902.3.2   SUBPOENAS FOR RECORDS

Subpoenas for records shall be date-stamped and logged on the subpoena/summons request

(SSR) log.

The Custodian of Records will consult with the department privacy officer regarding any request

for medical records. The Custodian of Records or the authorized designee will only produce the



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Subpoenas

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Subpoenas - 83

requested records as provided in this policy and the Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy

Policy.

A Declaration of Records shall be prepared, signed, copied and attached to the records provided

in response to a subpoena (Evidence Code § 1271; Evidence Code § 1561). The Custodian of

Records shall make reasonable efforts to produce the requested records, or provide a response

noting the lack of records, by the date specified in the subpoena.

The Department is entitled to recoup any reasonable costs incurred in production of business

records in response to a subpoena duces tecum. The Custodian of Records should provide a

statement reflecting the assessment of these reasonable costs and require payment at the time

subpoenaed records are delivered.

902.3.3   CIVIL SUBPOENAS FOR DEPOSITION OR NOTICE TO APPEAR

Upon receipt of a civil subpoena for a deposition or notice to appear, the Custodian of Records

shall date-stamp and log the subpoena on the SSR log.

The Custodian of Records shall ensure timely delivery of the subpoena to the identified member,

noting on the log the date and time it was accepted. The receiving member should acknowledge

receipt by signing and dating the log.

No subpoena for a member of this department as a witness in a civil action should be accepted

unless it is accompanied by the statutory fee of $275 for each day the member’s appearance is

required pursuant to the subpoena (Government Code § 68097.2).

Members shall notify their Duty Officer of receipt of a subpoena. Members should contact the

attorney issuing the subpoena to confirm the date and time of appearance or to confirm an on-call

status. The member shall comply with all instructions on the subpoena and monitor the status of

all required appearances to ensure compliance with judicial process. In the event a member will

be unavailable to respond to a subpoena, the member shall promptly notify the attorney issuing

the subpoena and the member’s Duty Officer.

Members who are deposed will request a copy of the transcript.

902.3.4   ON-CALL SUBPOENAS

Upon receipt of a subpoena and after contacting the issuing attorney, a member may make

arrangements with the issuing attorney to be placed in an on-call status.

The subpoenaed member shall promptly notify his/her supervisor of the subpoena and any on-call

status and make arrangements regarding any potential scheduling conflicts, potential overtime

compensation or other follow-up required to coordinate on-call appearance status.

902.3.5   CRIMINAL SUBPOENAS

Upon receipt of a criminal subpoena related to department business, the member shall promptly

notify the Duty Officer of his/her appearance and contact legal counsel if he/she has any questions.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Subpoenas

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Subpoenas - 84

902.3.6   CIVIL SUBPOENAS UNRELATED TO OFFICIAL DEPARTMENT BUSINESS

Members served with or receiving subpoenas for civil matters unrelated to their department duties

shall comply with the requirements of the subpoena. Members are not entitled to compensation

for any such appearance or deposition and arrangements for time off should be coordinated with

their supervisor.

902.3.7   WORKER'S COMPENSATION

A copy of any subpoena for a matter related to workers’ compensation shall be promptly provided

to the Administration and/or the risk manager.

902.4   RESPONSIBILITIES

902.4.1   MEMBERS

Members subpoenaed to appear in court for any department-related reason or who are

subpoenaed to produce records or evidence shall:

(a) Document the date, time and manner of receipt.

(b) Promptly contact the Custodian of Records and provide the Custodian with a copy of

the subpoena.

(c) Make arrangements through the Custodian of Records to obtain any related reports

or information.

(d) Notify their supervisor of the subpoena.

(e) Contact counsel for the Department for any necessary guidance.

Employees who are subpoenaed to testify about department-related matters shall receive their

normal wages. Any witness fees provided to an on-duty employee shall be promptly transmitted

to the Department. Members shall coordinate any scheduled appearances with their company

officer to ensure minimization of any appearances requiring the payment of overtime.

Employees subpoenaed to testify about non work-related matters shall be permitted to take time

off to testify but are not entitled to receive wages. Employees shall be entitled to use vacation,

personal leave or compensatory time off for the time they will be away from work.

Members appearing in court or appearing for court-related functions such as depositions shall

appear for court or other judicial proceedings in uniform or conservative business attire.

Any questions regarding this policy or its requirements shall be promptly directed to a supervisor

or department legal counsel.

902.4.2   SUPERVISORS

Supervisors should monitor the schedules of members who have been served subpoenas

requiring their appearance to ensure appropriate shift coverage and compensation for the

subpoenaed member.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Subpoenas

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Subpoenas - 85

Supervisors shall not intentionally adjust a member’s duty schedule for the purpose of creating

overtime.

902.5   TESTIFYING AGAINST THE INTEREST OF THE DISTRICT

Any member who has been subpoenaed to testify, has agreed to testify or who anticipates

testifying or providing information on behalf of, or at the request of, any party other than the state,

any city, county or any of their officers, agents or employees in which any of those entities or

persons are parties to the litigation, will promptly notify his/her supervisor. The supervisor shall

notify the Fire Chief, prosecuting attorney in a criminal case and the department’s legal counsel,

as may be indicated by the case.

(a) This requirement includes:

1. Providing testimony or information for the defense in any criminal trial or

proceeding.

2. Providing testimony or information for the plaintiff in a civil proceeding against

any city, county or their officers, agents or employees.

3. Providing testimony or information on behalf of, or at the request of, any party

other than any city, county or District official in any administrative proceeding,

including, but not limited to, personnel and/or disciplinary matters.

902.6   RECEIPT AND PROCESSING OF A SUMMONS

Upon receipt of a summons and complaint in a matter related to department business, the member

shall document the date, time and manner of receipt and promptly notify his/her supervisor and

contact legal counsel for the Department.

902.7   JURY DUTY

If a member receives a summons for jury duty and it falls on an on-duty day, the member shall

promptly notify his/her supervisor. Members shall be granted leave for jury duty for the hours

required by the court.

The member should obtain a jury duty excuse form from the court and present the document to

his/her supervisor upon returning to work.



Policy

903
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy -
86

Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy

903.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to establish appropriate administrative, technical, and physical

safeguards for patient medical records and to provide reasonable safeguards against prohibited

uses and disclosures of protected health information (PHI) in accordance with federal and state

law, to include the following:

• Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) (42 USC § 201 et seq.)

• California Confidentiality of Medical Information Act (CMIA) (Civil Code § 56 et seq.)

• Health and Safety Code § 1797.220

• Health and Safety Code § 1798

903.1.1   DEFINITIONS

Definitions related to this policy include:

Health information - Any information, whether oral or recorded in any form or medium, that is

created or received by the Department and relates to a person’s past, present, or future physical

or mental health or condition, or past, present, or future payment for the provision of health care

to a person (45 CFR 160.103).

Individually identifiable health information - Health information, including demographic

information, created or received by the Department that relates to an individual’s past, present,

or future physical or mental health or condition, the provision of health care to the individual, or

the past, present, or future payment for the provision of health care to an individual that can either

identify the individual or provide a reasonable basis to believe the information can be used to

identify the individual (45 CFR 160.103).

Limited data set - PHI that excludes the following direct identifiers of an individual or of relatives,

employers, or household members of the individual (45 CFR 164.514(e)):

• Names

• Postal address information, other than town or city, state, and zip code

• Telephone or fax numbers

• Email addresses

• Social Security numbers

• Medical record numbers

• Health plan beneficiary numbers

• Account numbers

• Certificate or license numbers



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy -
87

• Vehicle identifiers and serial numbers, including license plate numbers

• Device identifiers and serial numbers

• Web Universal Resource Locators (URLs)

• Internet Protocol (IP) address numbers

• Biometric identifiers, including finger and voice prints

• Full-face photographic images and/or any comparable images

Patient medical records - Department records or data containing any information identifying a

patient.

Protected health information (PHI) - Individually identifiable health information that is created

or received by the Department. Information is protected whether it is in writing, in an electronic

form, or communicated orally (45 CFR 160.103).

Protected personal information (PPI) - Information that includes but is not limited to PHI, pictures

or other forms of voice or image recording, patient address, telephone numbers, Social Security

number, date of birth, age, or any other information that could be reasonably used to uniquely

identify the patient or that could result in identity theft if released for unauthorized purposes or to

unauthorized personnel.

903.2   POLICY

It is the policy of the Department to reasonably safeguard PHI and comply with the HIPAA and

the implementing regulations through the use of policy and procedures, system access security

and passwords, and limited physical access to hard copy files (45 CFR 164.530(c)).

903.3   RESPONSIBILITIES

Members shall protect the security, confidentiality, and privacy of all patient medical records in

their custody at all times.

Possessing, releasing, or distributing PPI, including for unauthorized purposes, is prohibited and

may violate the HIPAA and/or other applicable laws. Members who have not received department

training on the proper handling of these records shall not access patient medical records.

Members with occupational access to patient medical records shall be trained in the proper

handling of PHI in accordance with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA)

Training Policy and shall reasonably ensure that no unauthorized person shall have access to PHI

without the valid authorization of the patient, except as provided by law (45 CFR 164.530(b); 45

CFR 164.512; Welfare and Institutions Code § 5328(24)).

903.4   PRIVACY OFFICER

The Fire Chief shall designate a privacy officer who is responsible for all matters relating to the

privacy of patient medical information, including PHI. The privacy officer shall (45 CFR 164.530):

(a) Identify who may have access to PPI and PHI.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy -
88

(b) Resolve complaints under the HIPAA.

(c) Mitigate to the extent practicable any harmful effects known to the Department

regarding any use or disclosure of PHI in violation of this policy or the HIPAA

regulations.

(d) Ensure members are trained in the proper handling of PHI in accordance with the

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) Training Policy.

(e) Ensure technical and physical safeguards are implemented to maintain security and

confidentiality of PHI and to allow access to PHI only to those persons or software

programs that have been granted access rights.

903.5   PROCEDURE

Records containing PHI or PPI, including Pre-Hospital Care Reports (PCRs), shall be kept out of

view unless the report is being completed during an incident, during input of information into the

National Fire Incident Reporting System (NFIRS), or during processing or review at Graton Fire

Protection District facilities by authorized personnel (45 CFR 164.530(c)).

903.6   SECURITY

All patient records containing PHI or PPI shall be kept secure at all times whether the record is in

written, verbal, electronic, or any other visual or audible format (45 CFR 164.306(a)).

Documents provided by a patient or caregiver will receive the same level of confidentiality and

security as department records during the time department personnel retain possession of the

documents.

No patient record, including documents and electronic images containing PHI, shall be visible to

the public.

903.6.1   ELECTRONIC PHI SECURITY

All computer workstations and servers within the Department shall require appropriate security

measures, such as user identification and login passwords, to access electronic documents,

including electronic PHI (45 CFR 164.308(a)(5)).

Members with access to electronic data shall lock their workstations when left unattended and

shall shut down their workstations when leaving for the day to prevent unauthorized access to

electronic PHI (45 CFR 164.310; 45 CFR 164.312).

Remote access to department computer workstations requires that appropriate security measures

be provided for access to PHI (45 CFR 164.312).

PHI may be transmitted electronically, provided the transmission occurs through a secure process

that allows end-to-end authentication and the recipient is authorized to receive the information.

Electronic transmission consists of email, file transfer protocol, internet web posting, and any

configurable data stream. End-to-end authentication is accomplished when the electronic referral



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy -
89

does not leave a secure network environment and the recipient is known, or when encryption

and authentication measures are used between sender and recipient, thus verifying full receipt by

the recipient. Any electronic PHI traveling outside a secure network environment, via the internet,

requires encryption and authentication measures (45 CFR 164.312(e)).

903.6.2   HARD COPIES

Hard copies of PCRs shall be kept in a secured area when unattended by authorized personnel.

An area of the Department is considered unattended when members are physically outside of the

area and unable to maintain record security. This includes but is not limited to breaks, lunch, and

meetings outside the Department.

Hard copies of PCRs should be stored in a locked area whenever practicable for ease of record

retention and retrieval.

Patient records shall not be removed from the Department without express authorization from the

Custodian of Records.

903.7   PHI RECORD REQUESTS

The following procedures apply to PHI record requests:

(a) Requests and subpoenas for copies of patient records shall be processed by the
Custodian of Records.

(b) The Custodian of Records or the authorized designee shall not release records
containing PHI without a properly completed authorization to release medical records
that is signed by the patient or legal representative of the patient.

1. Verification that the person completing the authorization is the patient or the legal
representative of the patient shall be made with government-issued identification
and documentation (45 CFR 164.508(c)).

(c) Unless the request for records is from the patient or the parent of a minor patient, PHI
shall be redacted from the record. A photocopy of the record shall be distributed to
the requestor.

(d) Requests for records via a valid subpoena do not require that PHI be redacted.

(e) Fulfilled records requests shall be placed in a sealed envelope for release to the
requestor.

(f) A full copy of the valid subpoena or authorization to release medical records form shall
be maintained in the file with the PCR.

903.7.1   PROHIBITED DISCLOSURES OF PHI AND PPI

The Department shall not use or disclose PHI or PPI without authorization. Prohibited disclosures

include any form of communication, except as permitted in this policy, including but not limited

to (45 CFR 160.103):

(a) PHI or PPI contained in email or other forms of written communication.

(b) Sharing of PHI or PPI on any website, blog, or other form of social or public media.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy -
90

(c) Verbal discussions.

(d) The use of any imaging device capable of capturing and storing still or moving images,
such as digital or other cameras, video cameras, cellular telephones with picture-
taking or video-recording capability, or any other device with picture-taking or video-
recording capability, while engaged in patient care, while at the scene of a medical
emergency or hospital, or at any time when such use could reasonably be expected
to result in the inappropriate capture of PHI or PPI.

903.7.2   PERMITTED DISCLOSURES OF PHI AND PPI

The Custodian of Records may release records containing PHI or PPI without authorization from

the patient under any of the following circumstances:

(a) For the department’s use to carry out treatment, payment, or health care operations
(45 CFR 164.506)

(b) Where the PHI is requested pursuant to a valid subpoena or court order (45 CFR
164.512(e))

(c) Where the PHI is part of a limited data set (45 CFR 164.514(e))

(d) Where the PHI is used for public health activities authorized by law, including when
the information is necessary to report child abuse or neglect (45 CFR 164.512(b))

(e) Where the PHI is disclosed to a government authority because the person is believed
to be a victim of abuse, neglect, or domestic violence (45 CFR 164.512(c))

(f) To law enforcement as provided in this policy (45 CFR 164.512(f))

(g) Where the Department believes that disclosure of the information is necessary to avert
a serious threat to the health or safety of a person or the public (45 CFR 164.512(j))

(h) Where the PHI is required for workers' compensation purposes (45 CFR 164.512(l))

903.7.3   REQUIRED DISCLOSURES

The Department must disclose PHI when:

(a) The PHI is requested by and provided to the individual to whom the PHI belongs (45
CFR 164.502(a)(2)).

(b) The information is required by the U.S. Secretary of Health and Human Services to
investigate compliance with HIPAA (45 CFR 164.502(a)(2)).

903.7.4   SUBPOENAS

Records containing PHI or PPI will be disclosed only if one of the following is present (45 CFR

164.512(e)(1)):

(a) A court order or subpoena signed (or stamped) by a judge that requires no additional
assurances or notification to the individual whose records are requested.

(b) A subpoena or discovery order signed by an attorney which requires additional proof
of service that written notification has been given to the individual whose records are
requested. In such a case, the subpoena or discovery order must be accompanied
by one of the following:



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy -
91

1. A qualified protective order.

2. A notice to consumer (Code of Civil Procedure § 1985.3) or a declaration by the
requesting party showing that reasonable efforts have been made to ensure that
notice has been provided to the individual whose records are being requested.

(a) No records relating to the person named in the notice will be produced
until the time to respond to the notice has lapsed and no objections to
the production of the materials requested have been made. If a notice to
consumer is not provided, the declaration must establish that:

1. The requesting party has made a good faith effort to provide written
notice to the individual.

2. The notice includes sufficient information about the litigation or
proceeding for which the PHI is requested to allow the individual to
raise an objection.

3. The time for the individual to raise objections to the court or tribunal
has elapsed.

4. No objections were filed or all objections have been resolved.

(b) In lieu of a declaration, records may be released if there is a court order or
a stipulation by the parties to the litigation that both (45 CFR 164.512(e)
(1)(v)):

1. Prohibits the parties from using or disclosing the PHI for any purpose
other than the litigation or proceeding for which such information was
requested.

2. Requires the return to the Department or destruction of the PHI
(including all copies made) at the end of the litigation or proceeding.

903.7.5   RELEASE OF PHI TO LAW ENFORCEMENT

The release of PHI to a law enforcement agency is permitted under the following circumstances:

(a) In response to a law enforcement officer who completes the department’s release of
PHI to law enforcement form and requires the PHI (45 CFR 164.512(f)(1)):

1. To report certain types of wounds or other physical injuries.

2. In compliance with a court order or court-ordered warrant, subpoena, or
summons, a grand jury subpoena, or an administrative request.

(b) In response to a law enforcement officer who completes the department’s release
of PHI to law enforcement form for the purpose of identifying or locating a suspect,
fugitive, material witness, or missing person. In such a case, the Department may only
disclose the following PHI (45 CFR 164.512(f)(2)):

1. Name and address

2. Date and place of birth

3. Social Security number



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Patient Medical Record Security and Privacy -
92

4. ABO blood type and Rh factor

5. The character and extent of injuries

6. Date and time of treatment

7. Date and time of death, if applicable

8. A description of distinguishing physical characteristics

903.8   INDIVIDUAL RIGHTS

The privacy officer is responsible for ensuring the Department complies with all of the following

rights of patients:

(a) The right to request restrictions on certain uses and disclosures of PHI (45 CFR
164.522(a))

(b) The right to receive their PHI confidentially (45 CFR 164.522(b))

(c) The right to inspect and copy their PHI (45 CFR 164.524)

(d) The right to request amendments to their PHI (45 CFR 164.526)

(e) The right to receive an account of disclosures of PHI (45 CFR 164.528)

903.8.1   PHI AMENDMENT REQUESTS

Patients have the right to review their PHI records and, if necessary, request that amendments be

made. A patient must make a request in writing to have his/her medical record amended. Included

in the request must be the patient’s account of the incident and what specific amendment is being

requested (45 CFR 164.526(b)(1)).

The privacy officer has the authority to deny the request for amendment where the PHI (45 CFR

164.526(a)(2)):

(a) Was not created by the Department.

(b) Is not part of the designated record.

(c) Is not available for inspection by the requestor pursuant to 45 CFR 164.524.

(d) Is accurate and complete.

Within 60 days of receipt of the request for amendment, the privacy officer must provide the basis

for its denial in writing or, in the case that the request is approved, provide notice of approval (45

CFR 164.526(b)(2)).

The time for response may be extended for up to 30 days with a written statement to the requestor

identifying the reasons for the delay and the date by which the action will be completed (45 CFR

164.526(b)(2)).



Policy

1102
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Discriminatory Harassment - 96

Discriminatory Harassment

1102.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to prevent department members from being subjected to

discriminatory harassment, including sexual harassment and retaliation (Government Code §

12940(k); 2 CCR 11023). Nothing in this policy is intended to create a legal or employment right

or duty that is not created by law.

1102.2   POLICY

The Graton Fire Protection District is an equal opportunity employer and is committed to creating

and maintaining a work environment that is free of all forms of discriminatory harassment, including

sexual harassment and retaliation. The Department will not tolerate discrimination against a

member in hiring, promotion, discharge, compensation, fringe benefits, and other privileges of

employment. The Department will take preventive and corrective action to address any behavior

that violates this policy or the rights and privileges it is designed to protect.

The nondiscrimination policies of the Department may be more comprehensive than state or

federal law. Conduct that violates this policy may not violate state or federal law but still could

subject a member to discipline.

1102.3   DEFINITIONS

Definitions related to this policy include:

1102.3.1   DISCRIMINATION

The Department prohibits all forms of discrimination, including any employment-related action by

a member that adversely affects an applicant or member and is based on actual or perceived

race, ethnicity, national origin, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression,

age, disability, pregnancy, genetic information, veteran status, marital status, and any other

classification or status protected by law.

Discriminatory harassment, including sexual harassment, is verbal or physical conduct that

demeans or shows hostility or aversion toward an individual based upon that individual’s protected

class. It has the effect of interfering with an individual’s work performance or creating a hostile or

abusive work environment.

Conduct that may, under certain circumstances, constitute discriminatory harassment can include

making derogatory comments; making crude and offensive statements or remarks; making slurs

or off-color jokes; stereotyping; engaging in threatening acts; making indecent gestures, pictures,

cartoons, posters, or material; making inappropriate physical contact; or using written material or

department equipment and/or systems to transmit or receive offensive material, statements, or

pictures. Such conduct is contrary to department policy and to a work environment that is free

of discrimination.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Discriminatory Harassment

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Discriminatory Harassment - 97

1102.3.2   RETALIATION

Retaliation is treating a person differently or engaging in acts of reprisal or intimidation against

the person because the person has engaged in protected activity, filed a charge of discrimination,

participated in an investigation, or opposed a discriminatory practice. Retaliation will not be

tolerated.

1102.3.3   SEXUAL HARASSMENT

The Department prohibits all forms of discrimination and discriminatory harassment, including

sexual harassment. It is unlawful to harass an applicant or a member because of that person’s sex.

Sexual harassment includes but is not limited to unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual

favors, or other verbal, visual, or physical conduct of a sexual nature when:

(a) Submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly as a term or condition
of employment, position, or compensation.

(b) Submission to, or rejection of, such conduct is used as the basis for any employment
decisions affecting the member.

(c) Such conduct has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with a member’s
work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment.

1102.3.4   ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATIONS

Discrimination and discriminatory harassment do not include actions that are in accordance with

established rules, principles, or standards, including:

(a) Acts or omission of acts based solely upon bona fide occupational qualifications under
the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission and the California Fair Employment
and Housing Council guidelines.

(b) Bona fide requests or demands by a supervisor that the member improve the
member's work quality or output, that the member report to the job site on time, that
the member comply with District or department rules or regulations, or any other
appropriate work-related communication between supervisor and member.

1102.4   RESPONSIBILITIES

This policy applies to all department members who shall follow the intent of these guidelines in a

manner that reflects department policy, professional standards, and the best interest of the Graton

Fire Protection District and its mission.

Members are encouraged to promptly report any discriminatory, retaliatory, or harassing conduct

or known violations of this policy to a supervisor. Any member who is not comfortable with reporting

violations of this policy to the member's immediate supervisor may bypass the chain of command

and make the report to a higher-ranking supervisor or manager. Complaints may also be filed with

the Fire Chief  or the Board of Directors.

Any member who believes, in good faith, that the member has been discriminated against,

harassed, or subjected to retaliation, or who has observed harassment, discrimination, or



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Discriminatory Harassment

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Discriminatory Harassment - 98

retaliation, is encouraged to promptly report such conduct in accordance with the procedures set

forth in this policy.

Supervisors and managers receiving information regarding alleged violations of this policy shall

determine if there is any basis for the allegation and shall proceed with a resolution as stated

below.

1102.4.1   QUESTIONS OR CLARIFICATION

Members with questions regarding what constitutes discrimination, sexual harassment, or

retaliation are encouraged to contact a supervisor, a manager, the Fire Chief, the Board of

Directors, or the California Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH) for further

information, direction, or clarification (Government Code § 12950).

1102.4.2   SUPERVISOR RESPONSIBILITIES

The responsibilities of supervisors and managers shall include but are not limited to:

(a) Continually monitoring the work environment and striving to ensure that it is free from
all types of unlawful discrimination, including harassment or retaliation.

(b) Taking prompt, appropriate action within their work units to avoid and minimize the
incidence of any form of discrimination, harassment, or retaliation.

(c) Ensuring that their subordinates understand their responsibilities under this policy.

(d) Ensuring that members who make complaints or who oppose any unlawful
employment practices are protected from retaliation and that such matters are kept
confidential to the extent possible.

(e) Making a timely determination regarding the substance of any allegation based upon
all available facts.

(f) Notifying the Fire Chief  in writing of the circumstances surrounding any reported
allegations or observed acts of discrimination, harassment, or retaliation no later than
the next business day.

1102.4.3   SUPERVISOR’S ROLE

Supervisors and managers shall be aware of the following:

(a) Behavior of supervisors and managers should represent the values of the Department
and professional standards.

(b) False or mistaken accusations of discrimination, harassment, or retaliation can have
negative effects on the careers of innocent members.

Nothing in this section shall be construed to prevent supervisors or managers from discharging

supervisory or management responsibilities, such as determining duty assignments, evaluating

or counseling members, or issuing discipline, in a manner that is consistent with established

procedures.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Discriminatory Harassment

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Discriminatory Harassment - 99

1102.5   INVESTIGATION OF COMPLAINTS

Various methods of resolution exist. During the pendency of any such investigation, the supervisor

of the involved member should take prompt and reasonable steps to mitigate or eliminate any

continuing abusive or hostile work environment. It is the policy of the Graton Fire Protection District

that all complaints of discrimination, retaliation, or harassment shall be fully documented, and

promptly and thoroughly investigated.

1102.5.1   SUPERVISOR RESOLUTION

Members who believe they are experiencing discrimination, harassment, or retaliation should be

encouraged to inform the individual that the behavior is unwelcome, offensive, unprofessional,

or inappropriate. However, if the member feels uncomfortable or threatened or has difficulty

expressing the member's concern, or if this does not resolve the concern, assistance should be

sought from a Chief Officer

1102.5.2   FORMAL INVESTIGATION

If the complaint cannot be satisfactorily resolved through the supervisory resolution process, a

formal investigation will be conducted.

The person assigned to investigate the complaint will have full authority to investigate all aspects

of the complaint. Investigative authority includes access to records and the cooperation of any

members involved. No influence will be used to suppress any complaint and no member will be

subject to retaliation or reprisal for filing a complaint, encouraging others to file a complaint, or for

offering testimony or evidence in an investigation.

Formal investigation of the complaint will be confidential to the extent possible and will include but

is not limited to details of the specific incident, frequency and dates of occurrences, and names

of any witnesses. Witnesses will be advised regarding the prohibition against retaliation, and that

a disciplinary process, up to and including termination, may result if retaliation occurs.

Members who believe they have been discriminated against, harassed, or retaliated against

because of their protected status are encouraged to follow the chain of command but may also

file a complaint directly with the Fire Chief or the Board of Directors.

1102.5.3   ALTERNATIVE COMPLAINT PROCESS

No provision of this policy shall be construed to prevent any member from seeking legal redress

outside the Department. Members who believe that they have been harassed, discriminated

against, or retaliated against are entitled to bring complaints of employment discrimination to

federal, state, and/or local agencies responsible for investigating such allegations. Specific

time limitations apply to the filing of such charges. Members are advised that proceeding with

complaints under the provisions of this policy does not in any way affect those filing requirements.

1102.6   DOCUMENTATION OF COMPLAINTS

All complaints or allegations shall be thoroughly documented on the appropriate forms and in a

manner designated by the Fire Chief. The outcome of all reports shall be:



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Discriminatory Harassment

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Discriminatory Harassment - 100

(a) Approved by the Fire Chief, depending on the ranks of the involved parties.

(b) Maintained in accordance with the established records retention schedule.

1102.6.1   NOTIFICATION OF DISPOSITION

The complainant and/or victim will be notified in writing of the disposition of the investigation and

the actions taken to remedy or address the circumstances giving rise to the complaint.

1102.7   COMPLAINT PROCEDURE

1. Any Member, Trainee or Cadet who has been subjected to harassment should contact
his/her immediate superior or the Fire Chief immediately after the incident.

2. Upon receipt of the complaint, the Fire Chief or his/her designee will conduct
an investigation, including contacting the person who allegedly engaged in the
harassment, inform him/her of the basis of the complaint and give the individual the
opportunity to respond in writing within seven (7) calendar days of being contacted
by the Fire Chief

3. The Fire Chief or his/her designee may hire an outside investigator based on the nature
of the complaint. This will extend the timeline of the process beyond the seven (7)
calendar days.

4. Upon completion of the investigation, including the receipt of any response by the
alleged harasser the Fire Chief will determine whether harassment has occurred.  Both
parties will be notified of the Fire Chief's determination in writing within fourteen (14)
calendar days after completion of the investigation.

5. If it is determined that harassment has occurred, appropriate disciplinary action up to
and including dismissal may be taken.  The disciplinary action will be determined by
the severity and/or frequency of the offense, in accordance with these Policies and
Procedures.

6. Previous acts may be considered in the disciplinary proceedings.

7. If the Fire Chief is named as the accused Member, the Board of Directors shall act in
the capacity of the Fire Chief, to investigate the matter and issue its determination.

1102.8   TRAINING

All new members shall be provided with a copy of this policy as part of their orientation. The policy

shall be reviewed with each new member. The member shall certify by signing the prescribed form

that the member has been advised of this policy, is aware of and understands its contents, and

agrees to abide by its provisions during the member's term with the Department.

All members shall receive annual training on the requirements of this policy and shall certify by

signing the prescribed form that they have reviewed the policy, understand its contents, and agree

that they will continue to abide by its provisions.

1102.8.1   STATE-REQUIRED TRAINING

The Training Officer should ensure that employees receive the required state training and

education regarding sexual harassment, prevention of abusive conduct, and harassment based



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Discriminatory Harassment

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Discriminatory Harassment - 101

on gender identity, gender expression, and sexual orientation as follows (Government Code §

12950.1; 2 CCR 11024):

(a) Supervisory employees shall receive two hours of classroom or other effective
interactive training and education within six months of assuming a supervisory
position.

(b) All other employees shall receive one hour of classroom or other effective interactive
training and education within six months of their employment or sooner for seasonal
or temporary employees as described in Government Code § 12950.1.

(c) All employees shall receive refresher training every two years thereafter.

If the required training is to be provided by the DFEH online training courses, the Training

Officer should ensure that employees are provided the website address to the training

course: www.dfeh.ca.gov/shpt (Government Code § 12950; 2 CCR 11023).

1102.8.2   TRAINING RECORDS

The Training Officer shall be responsible for maintaining records of all discriminatory harassment

training provided to members. Records shall be retained in accordance with established records

retention schedules and for a minimum of two years (2 CCR 11024).

1102.9   REQUIRED POSTERS

The Department shall display the required poster regarding discrimination, harassment, and

transgender rights in a prominent and accessible location for members (Government Code §

12950).



Policy

1103
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Conduct and Behavior - 102

Conduct and Behavior

1103.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines to prevent activities or behaviors that may lead

to disciplinary actions or dismissal.

1103.2   POLICY

It is the policy of this department that its members strive to attain the highest professional standard

of conduct and discharge their duties in a courteous and professional manner.

1103.3   DEFINITIONS

Members-Members of the Department consist of the Officers, Engineers, and

Firefighters. Trainees and Cadets are considered to be Probationary Members. For simplicity,

Trainees and Cadets are referred to as Members in this section.

Officers-The Officers of the Department consist of the Fire Chief, Deputy Chief, Assistant Chiefs,

and Captains.

1103.4   RESIDENCY AND AGE REQUIREMENTS

1. Members must reside or work within the Graton Fire Protection District unless
otherwise approved by the Fire Chief.

2. Members must be at least 18 years of age unless in the Cadet program, or otherwise
approved by the Board.

1103.5   PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT

All members should be governed by the ordinary and reasonable rules of behavior observed

by law-abiding and self-respecting citizens, and should conduct themselves at all times in such

manner as to reflect favorably on the Department. Conduct unbecoming a member shall include

that which discredits the Department or the person as a member of the Department or which

impairs the operation or efficiency of the Department or its members.

All members should conduct themselves in a manner that will not impair the good order and

discipline of the Department. Members should not, while on-duty, indulge in offensive, obscene or

uncivil language, verbal or physical altercations or threats thereof or conduct which might cause

injury to another person.

All Members shall obey the orders of their superior Officers or Incident Commander. Refusing

to obey orders may result in suspension or discharge from the Department, or other disciplinary

actions, as determined by the Fire Chief.

All members of the Department should be familiar with the expected standard of behavior, both

on- and off-duty.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Conduct and Behavior

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Conduct and Behavior - 103

Pursuant to the District's Alcohol and Drug Free Policy, no open alcoholic beverages or other

controlled substances shall be allowed on District property nor shall they be allowed on the scene

of any fire, medical or other incident to which the Department is dispatched   No Member will

be under the influence of intoxicating liquor or drugs while participating in any drill, meeting, fire,

medical or other incident.

Officers and Engineers shall set an example for other members and are responsible to ensure

that their activities and decisions pertaining to the operations of the District are consistent with the

following; all policies, common sense, and high moral standards.

Take every opportunity to help one another develop into a team.

Disregard for general safety rules will not be tolerated.

 If a member of your team is having difficulties, take the initiative to help him/her.

 Offer your help to anyone doing anything.  One person works, all work.

 Demonstrate compassion and caring for everyone we serve and everyone you serve with.

 Have a positive outlook.  

 Suggest positive solutions to encountered problems.

 Have integrity and display ethical behavior.  

 Exhibit exceptional personal hygiene.  Keep clean.  Maintain head and facial hair that does not

interfere with duties and OSHA standards.

1103.6   INTERACTION WITH THE PUBLIC

In the performance of their duties, members should be courteous to the public and tactful. They

should control their tempers, exercise reasonable patience and discretion, and should not engage

in any argumentative discussions even when provoked.

In the performance of their duties, members should not use coarse, violent, profane, or insolent

language or gestures, and should not express prejudice or discrimination (Government Code §

12940 et seq.).

1103.7   COURTESY TO MEMBERS

Members should be courteous and respectful in their relations with all members of the Department.

Members shall not use coarse, violent, profane, or insolent language or gestures, and shall not

express prejudice or discrimination (Government Code § 12940 et seq.).

1103.8   CONFORMANCE TO LAWS

Members shall obey all laws of the United States and of any state and local jurisdiction in which

the member is present.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Conduct and Behavior

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Conduct and Behavior - 104

1103.9   DEROGATORY OR MALICIOUS STATEMENTS

Members should not be a party to any malicious gossip, report or activity which would tend to

disrupt department morale or bring discredit to the Department or any member thereof. Member

questions concerning department policy, activities, officers and/or safety issues shall be submitted

by official written communication to the member’s immediate supervisor.

1103.10   POLITICAL ACTIVITY

Members should not engage in political activities of any kind while on-duty. Members are also

prohibited from engaging in any political activity off-duty while wearing any uniform items or

equipment that could identify them as members of the Department.

1103.11   SEXUAL ACTIVITY

Members should not engage in any sexual activity while on-duty. This includes use of any

electronic device to communicate or receive messages, photos or any other content of a sexual

or provocative nature.

1103.12   ILLEGAL GAMBLING

Members should not engage or participate in any form of illegal gambling at any time while on-

duty. This includes accessing gaming websites from computers or any electronic device, whether

department-issued or owned by the member.

1103.13   GIFTS AND GRATUITIES

Members should not solicit or accept any gift, including money, tangible or intangible personal

property, or any service, gratuity, favor, entertainment, hospitality, loan, promise, or any other

thing of value from any person, business, or organization that is doing business with, or seeking

to do business with, the Department or the District.

If it may reasonably be inferred that the person, business, or organization seeks to influence the

actions of an official or seeks to affect the performance of an official while on-duty, the incident

should be immediately reported to the next level supervisor. This rule does not take the place of

any relevant requirements applicable to individuals under Government Code § 1090 et seq. or the

State Political Reform Act, Government Code § 87100 et seq.

1103.14   OFFERS OF DONATIONS AND GIFTS OF THE HEART

Members who are approached with monetary donations following major disasters shall direct the

person or entity to the Graton Firefighters' Association for instruction on proper ways to donate.

At no time should a member accept any monetary donation from the public. If a citizen offers a

gift of a non-monetary nature, such as food or product, the gift shall be placed in an area of the

station or office to be shared by all members.

At no time shall a member consider a gift of the heart as a personal present.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Conduct and Behavior

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Conduct and Behavior - 105

1103.15   ABUSE OF POSITION

Members should not use their official position, official identification cards or badges to avoid the

consequences of illegal acts or for other non-work related personal gain. Members shall not lend

to another person their identification cards or badges or permit their identification cards or badges

to be photographed or reproduced without the approval of the Fire Chief.

Members should not authorize the use of their name, photograph or official title that identifies them

as department members (e.g., in connection with testimonials or advertisements of any commodity

or commercial enterprise) without the approval of the Fire Chief.

Be aware of personal actions on/off duty while displaying anything identifying you as part of

the Graton Fire Protection District. This can include, but is not limited to, T-shirts, uniform shirts,

hats, badges, ID cards, vehicle placards, and vehicle window stickers.

1103.16   PUBLIC STATEMENTS AND APPEARANCES

Members should not address public gatherings, appear on radio or television, prepare any

articles for publication, act as correspondents to a newspaper or periodical, or release or divulge

investigative information or information on any other matter of the Department while presenting

themselves or in any way identifying themselves as representing the Department, without the

approval of the Fire Chief.

1103.17   VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT

1. No Member shall remove District equipment, including turnouts, from the station for
any purpose other than drills, fires, medical aids or other incidents unless specifically
permitted by the Fire Chief.

2. A private vehicle may not be equipped with any emergency red lights and/or siren
unless authorized by the Board.

3. A private vehicle may not be equipped with any fire/medical transmitting devices
unless authorized by the Fire Chief.

4. A private vehicle may not be used for Department business, unless approved by the
Fire Chief, highest ranking Officer, or Incident Commander.

1103.18   DRILLS AND RESPONSE

1. Members must attend at least 50 percent of the scheduled drills and at least 10 percent
of the dispatched incidents over a 12-month period. The Fire Chief may waive these
requirements under special circumstances with prior approval.

2. Drills start at the time designated by the Fire Chief.  Any Member who misses more
than 33 percent of a drill will not be given credit on the drill report.  Members who
attend a drill but do not participate as determined by the Fire Chief or highest ranking
Officer at the drill, will not be given credit on the drill report.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Conduct and Behavior

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Conduct and Behavior - 106

1103.19   DISCRIMINATION, OPPRESSION, OR FAVORITISM

Unless required by law or policy, discriminating against, oppressing, or providing favoritism to

any person because of actual or perceived characteristics such as race, ethnicity, national origin,

religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, age, disability, economic status,

cultural group, veteran status, marital status, and any other classification or status protected

by law, or intentionally denying or impeding another in the exercise or enjoyment of any right,

privilege, power, or immunity, knowing the conduct is unlawful, is prohibited.



Policy

1104
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Personnel Complaints - 107

Personnel Complaints

1104.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

This policy provides guidelines for reporting, investigation and disposition of complaints regarding

the conduct of members of this department and the service provided by this department. This

policy shall not apply to any questioning, counseling, instruction, informal verbal admonishment

or other routine or unplanned contact of a member in the normal course of duty, by a supervisor

or any other member, nor shall this policy apply to a criminal investigation.

This policy is intended to be applied in accordance with the procedures, rights or status that may

be contained in any applicable policy established by the District’s Administration.

The pre- and post-disciplinary procedures set forth in this policy do not apply to complaints against

at-will members who are not covered by the Firefighters Procedural Bill of Rights Act (FBOR).

1104.2   POLICY

This department takes seriously all complaints regarding service provided by the Department and

the conduct of its members. The Department will accept and address all complaints of member

misconduct in accordance with this policy and applicable federal, state and local law, municipal

and county rules..

It is also the policy of this department to ensure that the community can report misconduct without

concern for reprisal or retaliation.

1104.3   PERSONNEL COMPLAINTS

Personnel complaints consist of any allegation of misconduct or improper job performance by any

employee that, if true, would constitute a violation of department policy or rule or federal, state or

local law. Allegations or complaints may be generated internally or by the public.

Inquiries about employee conduct or performance that, if true, would not violate department policy

or rule or federal, state or local law may be handled informally by a supervisor and shall not be

considered a personnel complaint. Such inquiries generally include clarification regarding policy,

procedures or the department’s response to specific incidents.

1104.3.1   CLASSIFYING COMPLAINTS

Personnel complaints shall be classified in one of the following categories:

Informal - A matter in which the member’s Duty Officer is satisfied that appropriate action has

been taken by a supervisor of rank greater than the accused member. The responsible supervisor

shall have the discretion to determine the appropriate manner for resolving the complaint.

Formal - A matter in which a supervisor determines that further action is warranted. Such

complaints may be investigated by a supervisor of rank greater than the accused member

or referred to the designated department representative, depending on the seriousness and

complexity of the investigation.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Personnel Complaints

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Personnel Complaints - 108

Incomplete - A matter in which the complaining party either refuses to cooperate or becomes

unavailable after diligent follow-up investigation. At the discretion of the assigned supervisor or

the designated department representative, such matters need not be documented as personnel

complaints but may be further investigated or resolved as a complaint, depending on the

seriousness of the complaint and the availability of sufficient information.

1104.4   AVAILABILITY AND ACCEPTANCE OF COMPLAINTS

1104.4.1   AVAILABILITY OF COMPLAINT FORMS

Personnel complaint forms will be available and clearly visible in public access locations within

department facilities. Forms will also be available on the department website. Forms may also be

available at other government offices and facilities. Personnel complaint forms in languages other

than English may also be provided as determined necessary or practicable.

Every supervisor is responsible for monitoring public satisfaction or inquiries regarding the

personnel complaint process and forwarding to the Duty Officer any suggestions for improvement

or changes.

1104.4.2   SOURCES OF COMPLAINTS

(a) Members of the public may make complaints in any form, including in writing, by email,

in person or by telephone.

(b) Any department member becoming aware of alleged misconduct shall immediately

notify a supervisor.

(c) Supervisors shall initiate a complaint based upon observed misconduct or receipt from

any source alleging the misconduct of a member that, if true, could result in disciplinary

action.

(d) Anonymous complaints and third-party citizen complaints should be accepted and

investigated to the extent that sufficient information is provided.

1104.4.3   ACCEPTANCE OF COMPLAINTS

All complaints will be courteously accepted by any member and promptly given to the appropriate

supervisor. Although written complaints are preferred, a complaint may also be filed verbally,

either in person or by telephoning the Department, and will be accepted by any supervisor. If a

supervisor is not immediately available to take a verbal complaint, the receiving member shall

obtain contact information sufficient for the supervisor to contact the complainant. The supervisor,

upon contact of the complainant, shall complete and submit a complaint form as appropriate.

Although not required, complainants should be encouraged to file complaints in person so that

proper identification, signatures, photographs or physical evidence may be obtained as necessary.

1104.5   COMPLAINT DOCUMENTATION AND TRACKING

Supervisors shall ensure that all formal and informal complaints are documented on a complaint

form. The supervisor shall ensure that the nature of the complaint is defined as clearly as possible.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Personnel Complaints

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Personnel Complaints - 109

All complaints and inquiries should be documented in a log that records and tracks complaints.

The log shall include the nature of the complaint and the actions taken to address the complaint.

On an annual basis, the Department should audit the log and send an audit report to the Fire Chief

or the authorized designee.

1104.6   DISCIPLINARY INVESTIGATIONS

All allegations of misconduct will be investigated as follows:

1104.6.1   SUPERVISOR RESPONSIBILITIES

In general, the primary responsibility for the investigation of a complaint rests with the member’s

immediate supervisor, unless the supervisor is the complainant, is the ultimate decision-maker

regarding disciplinary action or has any personal involvement regarding the alleged misconduct.

The Fire Chief or the authorized designee may direct that another supervisor investigate any

complaint.

A supervisor who becomes aware of alleged misconduct shall take reasonable steps to prevent

aggravation of the situation.

Supervisors shall be responsible for the following:

(a) Department supervisors should respond to all complaints in a courteous and

professional manner.

(b) A supervisor receiving a formal complaint involving allegations of a potentially serious

nature shall ensure that the Duty Officer, Division Officer and Fire Chief are notified

as soon as practicable.

(c) A supervisor receiving or initiating any formal complaint shall ensure that a personnel

complaint form has been completed as fully as possible. The original complaint form

will then be directed to the Duty Officer of the accused member, via the chain of

command. The Duty Officer will forward a copy of the complaint to the Division

Officer to take any appropriate action and/or assign the complaint for investigation. In

circumstances where the integrity of the investigation could be jeopardized by reducing

the complaint to writing or where the confidentiality of a complainant is at issue, a

supervisor may orally report the matter to the Duty Officer, Division Officer or Fire

Chief.

(d) A supervisor investigating any complaint should:

1. Make reasonable efforts to obtain names, addresses and telephone numbers of

additional witnesses.

2. When appropriate, provide immediate medical attention and take photographs

of alleged injuries as well as accessible areas of non-injury.

(e) When the nature of a personnel complaint relates to sexual, racial, ethnic or

other forms of prohibited harassment or discrimination, the supervisor receiving the



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Personnel Complaints

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Personnel Complaints - 110

complaint shall promptly contact the Administration and the Duty Officer for direction

regarding his/her role in addressing the complaint.

(f) Supervisors who receive a citizen complaint that can be resolved immediately should

do so. Follow-up contact with the person who made the complaint should be made

within 24 hours of the Department receiving the complaint. If the matter is resolved

and no further action is required, the supervisor will note the resolution on a complaint

form and forward the form to the Duty Officer.

(g) Unresolved citizen complaints shall be forwarded to the Duty Officer to determine

whether to contact the person who made the complaint or assign the complaint for

investigation.

(h) The supervisor shall ensure that the procedural rights of the accused member are

followed.

(i) Within three days after assignment, the complainant should be informed of the

investigator’s name and the complaint number.

(j) Interviews of the complainant should be conducted during reasonable hours.

1104.6.2   INVESTIGATION PROCEDURES

The following procedures shall also be followed with regard to any accused member covered by

FBOR (Government Code § 3253):

(a) Not less than 48 hours before an investigator begins an interview to obtain facts and

statements, the Department should:

1. Provide the name and rank of the person in charge of the investigation and of

those who will conduct any interviews.

2. Provide the date, time and place of the interview and the names of all who will

be present.

3. Provide the member a written summary of the alleged misconduct and a

description of the nature of the investigation.

(b) Interviews of accused members should be conducted during reasonable work hours

of the member and, if the member is off-duty, the member shall be compensated.

(c) Off-duty interviews should only be conducted based on the seriousness of the

investigation and other factors when time is of the essence.

(d) An investigator should not interview a member at that person’s home without the

member’s prior permission.

(e) No more than two interviewers should ask questions of an accused member to prevent

confusion or misunderstandings.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Personnel Complaints

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Personnel Complaints - 111

(f) All interviews shall be for a reasonable period or duration and the member’s personal

needs shall be accommodated.

(g) No member shall be subjected to offensive or threatening language nor shall

any promises, rewards or other inducements be used to obtain answers. Any

member refusing to answer questions directly related to the investigation may be

ordered to answer questions or be subject to discipline for insubordination. Nothing

administratively ordered may be provided to a criminal investigator.

(h) Absent circumstances preventing it, the interviewer should record all interviews of

members and witnesses. The member may also record interviews. If the member has

been previously interviewed, a copy of that recorded interview should be provided to

the member prior to any subsequent interview. The member shall also be entitled to a

transcribed copy of any notes made by a stenographer or to any reports or complaints

made by investigators or other persons, except those portions that are otherwise

required by law to be kept confidential.

(i) If the allegations involve potential criminal conduct, the member shall be advised of

his/her constitutional rights. This admonishment shall be given regardless of whether

the member was advised of these rights during any separate criminal investigation.

(j) A member subjected to interviews that could result in punitive action shall have the

right to have a representative of his/her choosing during any interrogation. However,

in order to maintain the integrity of each individual member’s statement, involved

members shall not consult or meet with representatives or attorneys collectively or in

groups prior to being interviewed.

(k) All members shall provide complete and truthful responses to questions posed during

interviews.

(l) No member may be compelled to submit to a deception detection device/polygraph
examination, nor shall any refusal to submit to such examination be mentioned in any
investigation.

1104.6.3   INVESTIGATION FORMAT

Investigations of complaints should be timely, detailed, complete and essentially follow this format:

Introduction - Include the identity of the member, the identity of the assigned investigators, the

initial date and source of the complaint.

Synopsis - Provide a very brief summary of the facts giving rise to the investigation.

Summary of allegations - List the allegations separately, including applicable policy sections,

with a very brief summary of the evidence relevant to each allegation.

Evidence as to each allegation - Each allegation should be set forth with the details of the

evidence applicable to each allegation and include comprehensive summaries of member and



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Personnel Complaints

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Personnel Complaints - 112

witness statements. Other evidence related to each allegation should also be detailed in this

section.

Conclusion - A recommendation regarding further action or disposition should be provided.

Exhibits - A separate list of exhibits (e.g., recordings, photos and documents) should be attached

to the report.

1104.6.4   ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE

When a complaint of misconduct is of a serious nature, or when circumstances dictate that allowing

the accused to continue to work would adversely affect the mission of the Department, the Fire

Chief or the authorized designee may temporarily assign an accused employee to administrative

leave. The Fire Chief or authorized designee shall notify the Administration in writing of the

employee’s administrative leave and the cause for the leave.

1104.7   POST-INVESTIGATION PROCEDURES

Upon completion, the report should be forwarded to the Fire Chief through the chain of command

of the involved member. Each level of command should review and include their comments in

writing before forwarding the report. The Fire Chief may accept or modify the classification and

recommendation for disciplinary action contained in the report.

1104.7.1   DIVISION OFFICER RESPONSIBILITIES

Upon receipt of any completed personnel investigation, the Division Officer of the involved member

shall review the entire investigative file, the member’s personnel file and any other relevant

materials.

The Division Officer may make recommendations regarding the disposition of any allegations and

the amount of discipline, if any, to be imposed.

Prior to forwarding recommendations to the Fire Chief, the Division Officer may return the entire

investigation to the assigned investigator or supervisor for further investigation or action.

When forwarding any written recommendation to the Fire Chief, the Division Officer shall include

all relevant materials supporting the recommendation. Actual copies of a member’s existing

personnel file need not be provided and may be incorporated by reference.

1104.7.2   RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE FIRE CHIEF

Upon receipt of any written recommendation for disciplinary action, the Fire Chief shall

review the recommendation and all accompanying materials. The Fire Chief may modify any

recommendation and/or may return the file to the Division Officer for further investigation or action.

Once the Fire Chief is satisfied that no further investigation or action is required by staff, the Fire

Chief shall determine the amount of discipline, if any, to be imposed. In the event that disciplinary

action is proposed, the Fire Chief shall provide the member with written notice of the following

information:



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Personnel Complaints

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Personnel Complaints - 113

(a) Access to all of the materials considered by the Fire Chief in recommending the

proposed discipline

(b) An opportunity to respond orally or in writing to the Fire Chief within five days of

receiving the notice

1. Upon a showing of good cause by the member, the Fire Chief may grant a

reasonable extension of time for the member to respond.

2. If the member elects to respond orally, the presentation shall be recorded by

the Department. Upon request, the member shall be provided with a copy of the

recording.

(c) Once the member has completed his/her response or, if the member has elected to

waive any such response, the Fire Chief shall consider all information received in

regard to the recommended discipline. The Fire Chief shall thereafter render a timely

written decision to the member and specify the grounds and reasons for discipline and

the effective date of the discipline.

(d) Once the Fire Chief has issued a written decision, the discipline shall become effective.

1104.8   PRE-DISCIPLINE MEMBER RESPONSE

The pre-discipline process is intended to provide the accused member with an opportunity to

present a written or oral response to the Fire Chief after having had an opportunity to review the

supporting materials and prior to imposition of any recommended discipline. The member shall

consider the following:

(a) This response is not intended to be an adversarial or formal hearing.

(b) Although the member may be represented by an uninvolved representative or legal

counsel, the response is not designed to accommodate the presentation of testimony

or witnesses.

(c) The member may suggest that further investigation could be conducted or the member

may offer any additional information or mitigating factors for the Fire Chief to consider.

(d) In the event that the Fire Chief elects to cause further investigation to be conducted,

the member shall be provided with the results of such subsequent investigation prior

to the imposition of any discipline.

(e) The member may thereafter have the opportunity to further respond orally or in

writing to the Fire Chief on the limited issues of information raised in any subsequent

materials.

1104.9   RESIGNATIONS/RETIREMENTS PRIOR TO DISCIPLINE

In the event that a member tenders a written retirement or resignation prior to the imposition of

discipline, it shall be noted in the file. The tender of a retirement or resignation by itself shall not

serve as grounds for the termination of any pending investigation or discipline.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Personnel Complaints

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Personnel Complaints - 114

1104.10   POST-DISCIPLINE APPEAL RIGHTS

Non-probationary members have the right to appeal a suspension without pay, punitive transfer,

demotion, reduction in pay or step and termination from employment. The member has the right

to appeal using to the procedures established in any operative collective bargaining agreement

and/or personnel rules.

In the event of punitive action against a member covered by FBOR, the appeal process shall be

in compliance with Government Code § 3254.5.

1104.11   AT-WILL AND PROBATIONARY MEMBERS

At-will and probationary members not subject to FBOR may be disciplined and/or released from

employment without adherence to any of the procedures set out in this policy and without notice

or any cause at any time during the probationary period. These members are not entitled to any

rights under this policy.

Any probationary period may be extended at the discretion of the Fire Chief in cases where the

member has been absent for more than a week or when additional time to review the member is

considered by the Fire Chief to be appropriate.



Policy

1106
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

On-Duty Voting in Statewide Elections - 118

On-Duty Voting in Statewide Elections

1106.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

Although members are encouraged to use alternative voting methods, such as absentee ballots or

early voting, this policy provides guidelines to enable members to vote in all statewide elections.

1106.2   POLICY

It is the policy of the Graton Fire Protection District to provide members a reasonable opportunity

to vote in all statewide elections.

1106.3   PROCEDURES

Polls are generally open from 7:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. each election day for statewide elections.

Members scheduled to be at work during that time may take up to two hours off to vote without

losing any pay (Elections Code § 14000).

Employees who need time off to vote must notify their supervisor at least two working days prior

to the election.

Supervisors shall allow members time off to vote according to the following:

(a) Employees may take as much time as needed to vote but only two hours of that time

will be paid.

(b) Authorized time off for voting should be at the beginning or end of a regular work shift,

whichever allows the most free time for voting and the least time off from the regular

working shift.

(c) Members working 24-hour shifts ending on the day of the election will not be relieved

early to vote.

1106.4   POSTED NOTICE

The Operations Division Officer should ensure that the required notice informing employees of

their voting rights under state law is conspicuously posted not less than 10 days before every

statewide election (Election Code §14001).

The notice should be posted in all fire stations and at all fire department facilities. Notices from

the California Secretary of State may be used for this purpose.



Policy

1107
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Grievance Procedure - 119

Grievance Procedure

1107.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

This policy establishes processes for resolving disputes or concerns regarding conditions of

employment, unethical, wasteful or other inappropriate conduct.

This policy does not apply to complaints related to alleged acts of discrimination or harassment

or complaints of discrimination on the basis of other protected categories subject to the

Discriminatory Harassment Policy. This policy also does not apply to complaints consisting of any

alleged misconduct or improper job performance by any member that, if true, would constitute

a violation of federal, state or local law, or a violation of department policy or the standards

established in the Personnel Complaints Policy.

This policy does not prohibit adverse administrative action taken for legitimate non-discriminatory

or non-retaliatory reasons, including for-cause discipline.

The procedures set forth herein are intended to supplement and not limit a member’s access to

other applicable remedies. Nothing in this policy shall diminish the rights or remedies of a member

pursuant to any applicable federal law, provision of the U.S. Constitution, state law, local ordinance

or collective bargaining agreement.

1107.1.1   GRIEVANCE DEFINED

A grievance is any difference of opinion concerning terms or conditions of employment or the

dispute involving the interpretation or application of any of the following documents:

• This Policy Manual

• Rules and regulations covering personnel practices or working conditions of members

A grievance includes any claim of waste, abuse of authority, gross mismanagement and any

practice within the Department which may pose a threat to health, safety or security.

Grievances may be brought by an individual member or by a group representative.

1107.2   POLICY

It is the policy of this department that all grievances be handled quickly and fairly without retaliation

against a member who files a grievance, whether or not there is a basis for the grievance. It is the

philosophy of this department is to promote free verbal communication between members and

supervisors.

1107.3   RETALIATION PROHIBITED

No member may retaliate against any person for reporting or making a complaint under this policy

or for opposing a practice believed to be improper, unethical, wasteful, retaliatory or participating

in any investigation pursuant to this policy or any other policy in this policy manual.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Grievance Procedure

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Grievance Procedure - 120

Employees found to be in violation of this policy are subject to discipline. Supervisors who condone

or ignore violations of this policy or otherwise fail to take appropriate action to enforce this policy

are also subject to discipline.

1107.4   PROCEDURE

Grievances as defined above, should be resolved using the following procedure.

1107.4.1   COMMUNICATING GRIEVANCES

Members are encouraged to communicate with command personnel regarding any workplace

problem or issue they feel needs immediate attention. Generally, any concern about a workplace

situation should be first raised with the member’s immediate supervisor unless that supervisor is

part of the member’s concern. It is recognized, however, that there may be occasions where the

use of the normal chain of command may not be appropriate.

Any member who feels threatened in any manner or is otherwise concerned about reporting to his/

her immediate supervisor may report this information directly to the Fire Chief or Administration

without first reporting the information to their immediate supervisor or following the chain of

command.

This alternate process shall not be used to circumvent or avoid addressing issues through the

normal chain of command.

1107.4.2   GRIEVANCE RECEIPT

Upon receipt of an oral or written grievance, the receiving supervisor will promptly document the

grievance, initiate the investigative process and ensure that the appropriate supervisor and the

Administration are notified.

Investigations are generally more effective when the identity of the grieving member is known,

thereby allowing investigators to obtain additional information from the reporting member.

However, a grievance may be made anonymously.

All reasonable efforts should be made to protect the reporting member’s identity. However,

confidential information may be disclosed to the extent required by law or to the degree necessary

to conduct an adequate investigation and make a determination regarding a grievance. In some

situations, the investigative process may not be complete unless the source of the information and

a statement by the member is produced as part of the process.

The supervisor receiving the grievance should explain to the grieving member how the matter will

be handled.

1107.4.3   RESOLVING GRIEVANCES

(a) Supervisors receiving grievances should attempt to resolve the issue through informal

discussion with member.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Grievance Procedure

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Grievance Procedure - 121

(b) If after a reasonable amount of time, generally seven days, the grievance cannot be

settled by the immediate supervisor, the member may request a meeting with the Duty

Officer.

(c) If a successful resolution is not found with the Duty Officer, the member may request

a meeting with the Fire Chief.

(d) If the member and the Fire Chief are unable to arrive at a mutual solution, then the

member shall proceed as follows:

1. Submit in writing a written statement of the grievance and deliver one copy to

the Fire Chief and another copy to the immediate supervisor and include the

following information:

(a) The basis for the grievance

(b) What remedy or goal is being sought by this grievance

(e) The Fire Chief will receive the grievance in writing. The Fire Chief and the District

executive will review and analyze the facts or allegations and respond to the member

within 14 calendar days. The response shall identify any corrective measures or other

remedies as appropriate. The decision of the District executive is considered final.

1107.5   GRIEVANCE REQUIREMENTS

1. A grievance, excluding challenge to imposition of a disciplinary action, may be filed by
any affected Member, but not by either:

(a) The Fire Chief, since the Fire Chief serves at the will of the board.

(b) A Cadet or a Trainee, since both serve at the pleasure of the Fire Chief.

2. A grievance originating from the Fire Chief’s imposition of discipline upon a Member
shall follow the process and time periods outlined within the District's Disciplinary
procedures section.

1107.5.1   STEP ONE: INFORMAL GRIEVANCE:

(a) Within seven (7) calendar days of the event giving rise to the grievance, the Member
shall present the grievance, in writing, to the Fire Chief or the Fire Chief's designee for
disposition. Presentation shall be a prerequisite to the institution of a formal grievance.
Written records shall be maintained by the Fire Chief or the Fire Chief's designee and
a copy shall be provided to the Member.

(b) If the Member believes that the grievance has not been properly redressed within this
seven (7) calendar day period, he/she may initiate a formal grievance as described
below.

1107.5.2   4. STEP TWO: FORMAL GRIEVANCE:

(a) The Member shall describe the grievance in question in writing and in sufficient detail
and present same to the Fire Chief or his/her designee within fourteen (14) calendar



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Grievance Procedure

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Grievance Procedure - 122

days after the event giving rise to the grievance.The Member shall state what relief/
action/goal the Member is requesting.

(b) Within twenty-eight (28) calendar days after the incident giving rise to the grievance,
and if the procedures described above are properly executed, the Fire Chief or his/
her designee shall:

1. Further investigate the grievance,

2. Confer with the Member in an attempt to resolve the grievance, and

3. Make a decision in writing which shall be presented to the Member.

(c) If the Member believes that the grievance has not been properly redressed, he/she
may initiate a Board Grievance as described below.

1107.5.3   STEP THREE: PRESENTATION TO THE BOARD BY MEMBER:

(a) Within thirty-five (35) calendar days after the event giving rise to the grievance, the
Member shall contact the Board President in writing to request that the grievance be
heard. The President may call for a special meeting of the Board expeditiously, or may
place the matter on the agenda for the next regularly scheduled Board Meeting. But in
no event shall the matter be heard later than thirty-five (35) days after the grievance
is received by the President.

(b) The Fire Chief, or the Fire Chief's designee, shall provide the Board President with
copies of all written documents regarding this grievance.

(c) The Board's decision shall be final and shall be recorded in the minutes of the Board.

1. There shall be no further grievance procedure available to the Member within
the authority of the Graton Fire Protection District.

(d) The document describing the Board decision shall be lodged in the personnel file of
the Member and delivered to the Member.

1107.6   RESPONSIBILITIES

1107.6.1   MEMBER RESPONSIBILITIES

This policy is intended to support efforts to identify and remediate when appropriate, workplace

issues. Members are encouraged to identify workplace issues to bring about positive change

in the Department. Members shall act in good faith and not file trivial grievances or grievances

intended to harass or deflect scrutiny or blame to another.

Members shall make reasonable efforts to verify facts before making a grievance. Members shall

not report or threaten to report information or a grievance knowing it to be false, with willful or

reckless regard for the truth or falsity of the information or otherwise made in bad faith.

When making a grievance, members should provide as much information as possible and should

cooperate fully with all investigations. Members shall maintain the confidentiality of any statements

made in conjunction with an active grievance pursuant to this policy. This provision is not intended



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Grievance Procedure

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Grievance Procedure - 123

to diminish a member’s rights or remedies afforded by applicable federal law, constitutional

provision or collective bargaining agreement.

Any employee who believes that he/she has been subjected to reprisal or retaliation should

immediately report the matter to a supervisor in the member’s chain of command or to the

Administration.

1107.6.2   SUPERVISORS

Supervisors should make reasonable efforts to identify and remediate workplace issues and bring

about positive change in the Department before issues escalate to the grievance level. Once a

member has made the decision to file a grievance, supervisors shall not attempt to discourage

the member, shall accept grievances and shall ensure that reasonable efforts are made to reach

a prompt and fair resolution.

Supervisory personnel will:

(a) Document all grievances received and all steps taken to resolve the issue.

(b) Forward the documentation to the Administration Division Officer through the chain

of command.

(c) Monitor the work environment to ensure that any member making a grievance is

treated with respect and no differently than non-complaining employees.

(d) Communicate to all members the obligation not to engage in retaliation and follow-up

periodically with the grieving member to ensure that retaliation is not occurring.

1107.6.3   COMMAND STAFF

Command staff should ensure prompt resolution of all grievances, including the following:

(a) Timely grievance recognition and acceptance

(b) Appropriate documentation of the process and investigation

(c) Remediation of any inappropriate conduct or condition and the implementation of
measures to minimize the likelihood of reoccurrence

(d) Timely communication of the outcome to the grieving member

1107.7   MEMBER REPRESENTATION

Members are entitled to have representation during the grievance process and may seek advice,

counsel or the assistance of other employees or representatives in their presentation of a

grievance.

1107.8   GRIEVANCE RECORDS

At the conclusion of the grievance process, all documents pertaining to the process shall be

forwarded to the Administration Division Officer.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Grievance Procedure

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Grievance Procedure - 124

1107.9   GRIEVANCE AUDITS

The Administration Division Officer or the authorized designee should perform an annual audit of

all grievances filed the previous calendar year to evaluate whether any policy, procedure or training

changes may be appropriate. The Administration Division Officer shall record these findings in a

confidential memorandum to the Fire Chief without including any identifying information from any

individual grievance.



Policy

1108
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Workplace Violence - 125

Workplace Violence

1108.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to make clear that the Department does not tolerate any direct or

implied threats of violence or violent behavior in the workplace or any act or behavior that is or

can be perceived as threatening, hostile, and/or violent.

1108.2   POLICY

It is the policy of the Graton Fire Protection District to provide and maintain a safe work

environment for its employees, volunteers, and members of the public.

In responding to any violent behavior in the workplace, the Department is committed to providing

protection to all involved parties, including protection from future physical and/or mental harm and

the protection of the legal rights of victims, witnesses, and those instigating the harm.

1108.3   PROHIBITED BEHAVIOR

No member shall engage in, encourage, or promote violent behavior toward any person while

conducting department business or on department property.

No member engaged in department business shall carry or possess weapons or explosives unless

either:

(a) Permitted by department policy

(b) State or local law prohibits the Department from restricting the possession of the
weapon or explosive

1108.3   REPORTING AND INVESTIGATING

1108.3.1   MEMBER RESPONSIBILITY

Department members who experience, observe, or have knowledge of prohibited behaviors and

actions in the workplace, have a responsibility to report the situation as soon as practicable to a

supervisor, a manager, or a human resources representative and to the local police department,

if a threat has been made or a crime has occurred.

Members should render aid to anyone who may be in need and be prepared to assist emergency

responders, as requested, following any incident of violence in the workplace.

1108.3.2   SUPERVISOR, MANAGER, DUTY OFFICER, AND DIVISION OFFICER
RESPONSIBILITIES

Upon receipt of a report of potential or actual workplace violence, supervisors shall gather as

much information as possible to assess and determine the severity and potential of the situation.

If the report is found to be credible, the next immediate supervisor shall be notified as soon as

practicable and appropriate action taken.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Workplace Violence

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Workplace Violence - 126

Local law enforcement personnel shall be notified immediately of all threatening or violent

behavior.

1108.3.3   INVESTIGATION

The Fire Chief or designee will promptly, impartially, and with as much confidentiality as practicable

coordinate the investigation of all reports of violent behavior.

Department members are required to cooperate in any investigation. A timely resolution of each

report should be reached and communicated to all parties involved as quickly as possible.

1108.3.4   REPORTING NON-WORK-RELATED THREATENING OR VIOLENT BEHAVIOR

Department members who are victims of domestic violence or other threatening behavior outside

of the workplace or who believe they are potential victims of such behavior and fear it may enter

the workplace, are encouraged to report the situation as soon as possible to their supervisors.

Supervisors receiving any such report shall contact the Fire Chief or designee as soon as

practicable so that any appropriate safety measures or plans may be developed.

1108.4   RETALIATION PROHIBITED

Any form of retaliation against a member for making a report concerning violent behavior in the

workplace is prohibited.

Any member who becomes aware of any retaliation or threatened retaliation shall immediately

notify his/her supervisor.

1108.5   RESTRAINING ORDERS

Members who obtain a restraining order listing their workplace, person, or the Department as a

protected area must provide a copy of the restraining order to their immediate supervisor or the

Fire Chief. The Department needs this information in order to provide a safe workplace.

1108.6   FOLLOW-UP ACTION

Any employee reported to have exhibited violent or potentially violent behavior will be afforded all

rights provided by law, the applicable memorandum of understanding, and/or the Firefighter Bill

of Rights provisions before the Department takes any disciplinary action.

Actions that may be taken when an employee has been found to have violated this policy include

but are not limited to the following:

• Mandatory participation in counseling

• Placing the employee on paid administrative leave pending investigation into an
alleged threat or act

• Corrective/disciplinary action up to and including termination

• Criminal arrest and prosecution

• Special procedures, such as job relocation or initiation of a court order



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Workplace Violence

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Workplace Violence - 127

If, upon investigation, it is determined that an allegation is false or was made maliciously, the

employee who provided the false information will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and

including termination, as well as possible criminal arrest and prosecution.

1108.7   LEGAL ACTION

The Administration Division, in consultation with the department’s legal counsel, will determine if

the Department will seek a temporary restraining order or injunction to reduce future or threatened

violent behavior in the workplace (Code of Civil Procedure § 527.8).

1108.8   CORRECTIVE ACTIONS

At the completion of the investigation and a review of the incident, or in the case of a threat of

violence, non-disciplinary corrective actions should be implemented or requested to ensure overall

workplace safety. These actions may include but are not limited to:

• Placing the involved member on administrative leave pending further review and
determination of permanent action. Administrative leave would be unpaid in the case
of a volunteer.

• Reassigning the member to a different work location.

• Referring the member to conflict resolution training sessions.

• Referring the member to the Employee Assistance Program (EAP).

• Modifying workstation designs and office traffic flow patterns.

• Requiring the member to attend a fitness-for-duty evaluation.

• Developing specific workplace violence procedures for incident response, prevention,
and corrective actions.

1108.9   WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION

All department members are responsible for assisting in the prevention of violence in the

workplace.

The Department will provide appropriate training to members regarding workplace violence.

In the event a violent incident occurs in the workplace, the Fire Chief is responsible for ensuring

that all responsibilities have been met and actions carried out, as detailed in this policy, and shall

review the results of any investigation and ensure appropriate action is taken. Information gathered

during an investigation should be used for the continuous improvement of policies and procedures

to prevent workplace violence.



Policy

1109
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Lactation Breaks - 128

Lactation Breaks

1109.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to provide reasonable accommodations to members desiring to

express breast milk for a nursing child (29 USC § 207, Labor Code § 1030, Labor Code § 1031

and Labor Code § 1032).

1109.2   POLICY

It is the policy of the Graton Fire Protection District to provide a reasonable amount of break

time and appropriate facilities to accommodate any member desiring to express breast milk for a

nursing child (29 USC § 207 and Labor Code § 1030, Labor Code § 1031 and Labor Code § 1032).

1109.3   LACTATION BREAK TIME

A rest period should be permitted each time the member has the need to express breast milk (29

USC § 207). In general, lactation breaks that cumulatively total 30 minutes or less during any four-

hour work period or major portions of a four-hour work period would be considered reasonable.

However, individual circumstances may require more or less time. Such breaks, if feasible, should

be taken at the same time as the member’s regularly scheduled rest or meal periods.

While a reasonable effort will be made to provide additional time beyond authorized breaks, any

such time exceeding 15 minutes will be unpaid (Labor Code § 1030).

Members desiring to take a lactation break shall notify REDCOM or a supervisor prior to taking

such a break. Such breaks may be reasonably delayed if they would seriously disrupt department

operations (Labor Code § 1032).

Once a lactation break has been approved, the break should not be interrupted except for

emergency or exigent circumstances.

1109.4   PRIVATE LOCATION

The Department will make reasonable efforts to accommodate members with the use of an

appropriate room or other location to express milk in private. Such room or place should be in

close proximity to the member’s work area and shall be other than a bathroom or toilet stall. The

location must be shielded from view and free from intrusion from coworkers and the public (29

USC § 207 and Labor Code § 1031).

Members occupying such private areas shall either secure the door or otherwise make it clear

to others that the area is occupied with a need for privacy. All other members should avoid

interrupting a member during an authorized break, except to announce an emergency or other

urgent circumstance.

Authorized lactation breaks for members assigned to the field may be taken at the nearest

appropriate private area.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Lactation Breaks

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Lactation Breaks - 129

1109.5   STORAGE OF EXPRESSED MILK

Any member storing expressed milk in any authorized refrigerated area within the Department

 shall clearly label it as such. No expressed milk shall be stored at the Department beyond the

member’s shift.



Policy

1110
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Smoking / Tobacco Products - 130

Smoking / Tobacco Products

1110.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The U.S. Surgeon General has determined that the use of tobacco in any form can be hazardous

to one’s health. Tobacco products in any form may be offensive to other members and the public.

1110.2   POLICY

It is the policy of the Graton Fire Protection District that all members may use tobacco products in

permitted areas designated by the Fire Chief and as allowed by local and state laws.

Smoking and use of other tobacco products is not permitted inside any department facility, office,

department vehicle or fire apparatus, fire station, training facility or any other public building (Labor

Code § 6404.5). Tobacco products cannot be used within proximity to any of these facilities

to prevent smoke from being inhaled by the public or other members. It is the responsibility of

all members to ensure that no person smokes or uses any tobacco product inside department

facilities and vehicles.

No person shall smoke tobacco products within 20 feet of a main entrance, exit or operable window

of any public building (including any department facility), or buildings on the campuses of the

University of California, California State University and California community colleges, whether

that person is present for training, enforcement or any other purpose (Government Code § 7596

et seq.).

Finished tobacco products should be disposed of properly and not left on the ground or in the

landscaping. The metal can located at the station entrance is one option.

With the discretion of the Fire Chief or highest-ranking Member, tobacco products may be used

on extended calls as long as it is done discreetly and does not detract from the professional image

desired by the Graton Fire Protection District.

While providing station coverage or visiting another fire station, firefighters will follow the tobacco

guidelines as defined for that fire department or district.



Policy

1111
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace - 131

Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace

1111.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The Graton Fire Protection District prohibits the use of drugs and alcohol in the workplace in order

to provide a safer work environment for members and to protect the public’s safety and welfare.

This policy applies to all members when they are on District property or when performing District-

related business elsewhere (41 USC § 8103).

1111.2   POLICY

It is the policy of the Graton Fire Protection District to provide a drug free workplace for all

members.

1111.3   GENERAL GUIDELINES

Alcohol and drug use in the workplace or on department time can endanger the health and safety

of department members and the public.

Members who have consumed an amount of an alcoholic beverage or taken any medication, or a

combination thereof, that would tend to adversely affect their mental or physical abilities shall not

report for duty. Affected members shall notify the Fire Chief or the appropriate supervisor as soon

as they are aware that they will not be able to report to work. If a member is unable to make the

notification, every effort should be made to have a representative contact the supervisor in a timely

manner. If the member is adversely affected while on-duty, the member shall be immediately

removed and released from work (see the Work Restrictions section in this policy).

1111.3.1   USE OF PRESCRIBED MEDICATIONS

Department members who are medically required to take prescription medications during work

hours shall not allow such medications to impair their ability to perform their work.

Any member who is required to take any medication with side effects which might impair his/her

ability to fully and safely perform all requirements of the position shall report the need for such

medication to his/her immediate supervisor. No member shall be permitted to work or drive a

vehicle owned or leased by the Department while taking such potentially impairing medication

without a written release from his/her physician.

Possession or use of medical marijuana or being under the influence of marijuana on- or off-duty

is prohibited and may lead to disciplinary action.

Any member is required to provide within 24 hours of request a bona fide verification of a current

valid prescription for any potentially impairing drug or medication when requested. The prescription

must be in the member's name.

1111.3.2   MEDICAL CANNABIS

Possession, use, or being under the influence of medical cannabis on-duty is prohibited and may

lead to disciplinary action.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace - 132

1111.4   DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING

Except as provided otherwise in an employee collective bargaining agreement or as modified

for volunteers who are required to test under the DOT Drug and Alcohol Testing Policy, the

Department has the discretion to test a current employee for alcohol or drugs as follows.

The Fire Chief is responsible for reasonable enforcement of this policy, and may direct a member to

submit to a drug and/or alcohol test when reasonable suspicion that a member's ability to perform

his/her duties is impaired due to being intoxicated or under the influence of drugs or alcohol while

on Fire Department premises or functions.

It will be the discretion of the Fire Chief, based upon the particular circumstances, to determine

whether or not an investigatory interview is necessary when directing a member to submit to a

drug or alcohol test.

When the Fire Chief directs a member to submit to a drug and/or alcohol test, they must document

in writing the facts constituting reasonable suspicion that the member is question is intoxicated

or under the influence of drugs.

When the Fire Chief encounters a member who refuses an order to submit to a drug and/or

alcohol analysis upon direction shall remind the member of the requirements and disciplinary

consequences of this policy. Where there is reasonable suspicion that the member is then under

the influence of alcohol or drugs, the Fire Chief will arrange for the member to be safely transported

home.

Submit to a medical evaluation and to an alcohol and drug test when requested by the

Fire Chief, and authorize the results of the evaluation and/or test

Testing shall be done by a laboratory licensed and certified by the California Department of Health

Services, Laboratory Field Services, as a medical and forensic laboratory that complies with

federal guidelines.

1111.4.1   REASONABLE SUSPICION

The Department may require a blood test, urinalysis or other drug and/or alcohol screening of

those persons reasonably suspected of using or being under the influence of a drug or alcohol at

work. Testing must be approved by the Administration.

In order to receive authority to test, the supervisor must record the factors that support reasonable

suspicion and discuss the matter with the Administration. If there is a reasonable suspicion of drug

or alcohol use, the member will be relieved from duty and placed on sick leave if he/she is a paid

employee, or restricted from working if he/she is a volunteer, until the test results are received.

Reasonable suspicion must be based on short term indicators such as, but not limited to;

(a) Slurred speech;

(b) Alcohol odor on the employee's breath;

(c) Unsteady walking or impairment, disorientation or loss of balance;

(d) An accident involving Department property;



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace - 133

(e) Physical altercation;

(f) Verbal altercation;

(g) Drastic change in behavior;

(h) Pattern of abnormal, erratic, paranoid or bizarre behavior;

(i) Possession of alcohol or illegal drugs;

(j) Information obtained from a reliable person with personal knowledge, based on direct
observation;

(k) Unexplained drowsiness or sleeping on the job;

(l) Inability to respond appropriately to questions the employee should be able to answer;

(m) Any observable, objective phenomena i.e., use, possession, physical symptoms.

1111.4.2   POST-ACCIDENT TESTING

(a) Post-accident drug and alcohol testing will be conducted on members following an
accident where the member's performance cannot be discounted as a contributing
factor. The decision as to whether or not the member's performance can be discounted
will be at the discretion of the Fire Chief. The reason a member will not be tested
following an accident is if a determination is made that the member's performance
could not have been a contributing factor.

(b) If a fatality occurs, or bodily injury occurs or a vehicle suffers disabling damage, the
member may be tested irrespective of whether his/her involvement may be discounted.

(c) Post-accident alcohol test shall be administered within two hours following an accident
and no test may be administered after eight hours. A post-accident drug test shall be
administered within 32 hours following the accident.

1111.5   MEMBER RESPONSIBILITIES

Members shall come to work in an appropriate mental and physical condition and are absolutely

prohibited from manufacturing, distributing, dispensing, possessing or using controlled substances

or alcohol on department premises or on department time.

Members must notify their supervisor before beginning work when they are taking any medications

or drugs, prescription or non-prescription, which may interfere with the safe and effective

performance of duties or operation of District equipment.

Members must notify a supervisor immediately when they observe behavior or other evidence

they believe demonstrates that a fellow employee poses a risk to the health and safety of the

employee or others due to drug or alcohol use.

Members are required to notify their immediate supervisor of any criminal drug statute conviction

for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than five days after such conviction.

Inorder to ensure safe and productive work practices free from the influence of impairing drugs

and/or alcohol, and to comply with the Federal Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, the Fire

Department requires that a member:



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace - 134

(a) Not to attend scheduled or unscheduled drills, calls or any other Fire Department
function when the ability to perform any duties is impaired due to alcohol or drug use.

(b) Not use illegal drugs and/or prescription drugs without a prescription, during times of
participating including calls and training.

(c) Not to consume alcohol during times of participating or on/in Fire Department property
except for alcohol served at off-duty functions such as Christmas and Awards Dinners.

(d) Not directly or through third parties sell or provide illegal drugs to and person including
other members.

(e) Notify the Fire Chief of any criminal drug or alcohol conviction no later than five (5)
days after conviction.

Members who violate the above policy, or are convicted on a criminal drug statute violations, or

who fail to give the notice required above shall be subject to the appropriate personnel action, up

to and including termination, and/or may, where appropriate, be required to participate in a drug

abuse assistance or rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or

local health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency.

1111.6   COMPLIANCE WITH THE DRUG FREE WORKPLACE ACT

No later than 30 days following notice of any drug statute conviction for a violation occurring in the

workplace involving a member engaged in the performance of a federal grant, the Department will

take appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal, and/or requiring the member

to satisfactorily participate in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program (41 USC § 8104).

1111.7   EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

A voluntary employee assistance program may be available to assist those who wish to seek

help for alcohol and drug problems (41 USC § 8103). Insurance coverage that provides treatment

for drug and alcohol abuse also may be available. Employees should contact the Administration,

their insurance providers, or the employee assistance program for additional information. It is

the responsibility of each employee to seek assistance before alcohol or drug problems lead to

performance problems.

1111.8   SEARCHES

In order to promote a safe, productive and efficient workplace, the Department has the right

to search and inspect all District property, including, but not limited to, lockers, storage areas,

furniture, vehicles and other places under the common control of the District or the joint control of

the District and members. No member has any expectation of privacy in any District building, on

any District property or when using any District communications system.

If the member is covered by the Firefighters Procedural Bill of Rights Act, no search of such spaces

shall be made except in the member’s presence or with his/her consent or after notice has been

given to the member (Government Code § 3250 et. seq.). Nothing herein shall affect a search

conducted pursuant to a search warrant.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace - 135

Department Officers will not physically search the member, nor will they search the personal

possessions or private property of the member, such as the member's vehicle, purse, bag, etc.

without the freely given written consent of, and in the presence of, the member.

1111.9   PHYSICAL EXAMINATION

Thedrug and/or alcohol test may screen for substances which could impair an member's

ability to effectively and safely perform the functions of his/her job, including, but not

limited to, prescription medications, heroin, cocaine, morphine, PCP, methadone, barbiturates,

amphetamines, marijuana and other cannabinoids. The drug and/or alcohol test will consist of:

(1) a sample to be tested immediately for substances which could impair an member's ability to

effectively and safely perform the functions of his/her job; and (2) a control sample which may,

at the subsequent request of the affected member be tested to assist in the determination of

the validity or invalidity of the results derived from the initial testing.The control sample will be

maintained by the contracted for testing entity and/or person for a reasonable period of time.

(a) A positive result from a drug and/or alcohol test may result in disciplinary action, up
to and including dismissal.

(b) If the drug test is positive, the employee must provide, within 24 hours of request, a
bona fide verification of a valid prescription for the drug or related agent identified in
the drug screen. The prescription must be in the member's name. If the member does
not provide acceptable verification of a valid prescription, or if the prescription is not
in the member's name, or if the member has not previously notified his/her supervisor
of the valid use of a legal prescribed drug, the member will be subject to disciplinary
action, up to and including dismissal.

(c) If an alcohol or drug test is positive, the Department shall conduct an investigation to
gather all facts and determine appropriate rehabilitation action or discipline, up to and
including dismissal.

1111.10   POSITIVE TEST RESULT PROCEDURE

Following a positive result, a member is eligible to return to the Fire Department. However, the

member must complete the following steps successfully. If the member does not wish to perform

these steps, the member may either resign or be dismissed by the Fire Chief.

(a) Meet with the Fire Chief and request a leave of absence

(b) Turn in all Fire Department gear, including badge, ID card, license placard, pager,
radio, keys, and any other GFPD items

(c) Take home all personal items, including flashlight, helmet, wildland boots, toiletries,
bedding, etc.

(d) During the leave of absence, not represent GFPD in any manner including running
calls, participating in training, being at the fire station (unless requested to meet with
the Fire Chief), or identifying him/herself as a member of the department in any way

(e) Complete a DOT-approved, substance abuse professional (SAP) comprehensive
face-to-face assessment and clinical evaluation



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace - 136

(f) Follow the recommended course of education and/or treatment by the SAP

(g) Consult with a medical review officer if the SAP determines it is necessary or prudent
to do so as part of the evaluation

(h) Upon completing the recommended education and/or treatment, meet with the SAP for
a follow-up evaluation

(i) Develop a plan with the SAP to return to the Fire Department

(j) Complete a drug test with negative results

(k) Meet with the Fire Chief and request to return as an active member; if greater than
12 months since the leave of absence start date, complete a reorientation training
program as required by the GFPD policies & procedures

(l) Comply with ongoing testing as determined necessary for 12 months

(m) Complete a 12-month probation period

1111.11   MEMBER RESPONSIBILITIES

Members shall come to work in an appropriate mental and physical condition. Members

are prohibited from purchasing, manufacturing, distributing, dispensing, possessing, or using

controlled substances or alcohol on department premises or on department time (41 USC § 8103).

The lawful possession or use of prescribed medications or over-the-counter remedies is excluded

from this prohibition.

Members shall notify a supervisor immediately if they observe behavior or other evidence they

believe demonstrates that a fellow member poses a risk to the health and safety of the member

or others due to drug or alcohol use.

Members are required to notify their immediate supervisors of any criminal drug statute conviction

for a violation occurring in the workplace no later than five days after such conviction (41 USC

§ 8103)._

1111.12   WORK RESTRICTIONS

If a member informs a supervisor that the member has consumed any alcohol, drug, or medication

that could interfere with a safe and efficient job performance, the member may be required to

obtain clearance from a physician before continuing to work.

If the supervisor reasonably believes, based on objective facts, that a member is impaired by the

consumption of alcohol or other drugs, the supervisor shall prevent the member from continuing

work and request that a Duty Officer respond to the location of the impaired member. The Duty

Officer shall ensure the member is transported to a safe location and that the continuity of

department operations is maintained._

1111.13   REQUESTING SCREENING TESTS

A supervisor or Duty Officer may request that an employee submit to a screening test under any

of the following circumstances:



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace - 137

(a) The supervisor or Duty Officer reasonably believes, based upon objective facts,
that the employee is under the influence of alcohol or drugs that are impairing the
employee’s ability to perform duties safely and efficiently.

(b) During the performance of duties, the employee drives a motor vehicle and becomes
involved in an incident that results in bodily injury to the employee or another person
or substantial damage to property.

(c) The employee discharges a firearm in the performance of duties excluding training.

(d) The employee discharges a firearm issued by the Department while off-duty, resulting
in injury, death, or substantial property damage.

1111.13.1   DUTY OFFICER RESPONSIBILITY

The Duty Officer shall ensure written records are prepared documenting the specific facts that led

to the decision to request the test, and shall inform the employee in writing of the following:

(a) The test will be given to detect either alcohol or drugs, or both.

(b) The result of the test is not admissible in any criminal proceeding against the
employee.

(c) The employee may refuse the test, but refusal may result in dismissal or other
disciplinary action.

1111.13.2   SCREENING TEST DISPOSITION

Employees may be subject to disciplinary action if they:

(a) Fail or refuse to submit to a screening test as requested.

(b) After taking a screening test that indicates the presence of a controlled substance, fail
to provide proof, within 72 hours after being requested, that they took the controlled
substance as directed, pursuant to a current and lawful prescription issued in their
name.

(c) Violate any provisions of this policy.

1111.14   COMPLIANCE WITH THE DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE ACT

No later than 30 days following notice of any drug statute conviction for a violation occurring in

the workplace involving a member, the Department will take appropriate disciplinary action, up to

and including dismissal and/or requiring the member to satisfactorily participate in a drug abuse

assistance or rehabilitation program (41 USC § 8104)._

1111.15   CONFIDENTIALITY

The Department recognizes the confidentiality and privacy due to its members. Disclosure of any

information relating to substance abuse treatment, except on a need-to-know basis, shall only be

with the express written consent of the member involved or pursuant to lawful process.

The written results of any screening tests and all documents generated by the employee

assistance program are considered confidential medical records and shall be maintained

separately from the employee’s other personnel



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace - 138



Policy

1112
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Release of HIPAA-Protected Information - 139

Release of HIPAA-Protected Information

1112.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to establish a pre-authorization process for the release of a member’s

personal health information, which is protected by Health Insurance Portability and Accountability

Act (HIPAA) regulations, in the event of an on-duty injury or illness.

1112.2   POLICY

It is the policy of the Graton Fire Protection District to allow members to complete a pre-

authorization for the release of their personal health information to a family member in the event

the member becomes injured or ill on-duty.

1112.3   GUIDELINES

The following topics should be considered for inclusion in this policy:

(a) The right of members to voluntarily complete a pre-authorization for the release of

personal health information to specific individuals

(b) The location of storage and method of security of completed pre-authorization forms

(c) The process for a supervisor to access completed forms during both business and

non-business hours

(d) Expiration, renewal and revocation processes for the pre-authorization form

(e) Define a list of situations or circumstances in which members can expect the

Department to release their personal health information to the pre-authorized

individuals



Policy

1114
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Military Leave - 147

Military Leave

1114.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

This policy provides general guidance regarding leave to perform military service as a member of

the Reserves or National Guard or active duty in the U.S. Armed Forces (California Military and

Veteran’s Code § 389, et seq., Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act

(USERRA) and 38 USC § 4301, et seq.).

This policy does not address every situation or circumstance that may arise when an employee is

performing military service or ordered to active duty. As military leave situations arise, supervisors

should consult with the Administration or legal counsel to obtain specific guidance regarding

military leave rights.

1114.2   POLICY

The Graton Fire Protection District supports employees who may be called or who volunteer to

serve in the military. The Department will comply with USERRA and state laws relating to military

leave.

1114.3   MILITARY LEAVE

Generally, employees on military leave are entitled to the same rights and benefits not determined

by seniority, that are provided to employees having similar seniority, status and pay who are on

furlough or leave of absence (38 USC § 4316(b)(1)).

1114.3.1   LENGTH OF LEAVE

Employees are entitled to military leave of absence for up to a maximum of five years (38 USC

§ 4312(a)(2)). Military leave is available for both voluntary and mandatory service (38 USC §

4303(13) and 38 USC § 4312(a)).

There are exceptions to the five-year cumulative total, including inactive duty training (drills),

annual training, involuntary recall or retention in support of war, national emergency, certain

operational missions, or training or retraining requirements (38 USC § 4312(c)).

1114.3.2   TEMPORARY MILITARY DUTY LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Employees are entitled to temporary military leave for a period not to exceed 180 days per period

of ordered duty. This includes travel time, active military training, encampment, naval cruises,

special exercises or similar activities (Military and Veterans Code § 389).

An employee who is a member of the California State Military Reserve is entitled to temporary

military leave not to exceed 15 days per year for training, drills, unit training assemblies or similar

inactive duties (Military and Veterans Code § 395.9).

1114.4   PROCEDURES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Employees requesting military leave shall:



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Military Leave

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Military Leave - 148

(a) Provide as much advance notice of the pending service as reasonably possible (38
USC § 4312(a) and (b)).

(b) Provide copies of official orders or other official documentation.

(c) Select the benefit options desired during absence, if applicable

(d) Retain copies of all submitted documents.

Upon receipt of a request, the Graton Fire Protection District will determine eligibility for military

leave and notify the employee in writing of the determination.

1114.5   COORDINATION WITH CONTRACTS, PRACTICES AND OTHER RULES

Wherever USERRA has more generous protections and benefits than state or local law, any

applicable local policy or practice, the department will apply the more beneficial right or benefit

(38 USC § 4302).

1114.6   LEAVE ACCRUALS

Employees on military leave are not required to use accrued leave while on military leave.

However, employees may choose to use accrued annual leave or earned compensatory time, at

their discretion (38 USC § 4316).

Employees will not accrue sick days or and paid time-off days during any period of military

leave without pay. However, upon return, military leave time will be included in determining

leave accruals. For example, if vacation accrual increases from two weeks to three weeks upon

completion of five years of service, then a person who works for two years, serves two years

on active duty and then returns, would be entitled to three weeks of vacation one year after

reemployment.

1114.7   COMPENSATION

During approved military leave, employees are entitled to compensation as follows:

(a) An employee whose combined Graton Fire Protection District employment and military

service is less than one year is eligible for unpaid temporary military leave.

(b) An employee with one or more years of combined military service and Graton

Fire Protection District employment is entitled receive his/her regular salary and

compensation as an employee for the first 30 calendar days in any fiscal year while

on temporary military leave (Military and Veterans Code § 395.01).

(c) An employee of the Graton Fire Protection District with one or more years of Graton

Fire Protection District employment is entitled to receive his/her regular salary and

compensation as an employee for the first 30 days in any fiscal year (Military and

Veterans Code § 395.02).

(d) An employee called to active military duty as a member of the National Guard during

a state of extreme emergency, as declared by the Governor, is entitled to receive



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Military Leave

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Military Leave - 149

his/her regular salary and compensation as an employee for 30 days, regardless of

the length of prior employment with the Graton Fire Protection District (Military and

Veterans Code § 395.04).

1114.7.1   HEALTH CARE BENEFITS

Employees on approved military leave may elect to purchase continuing health care coverage for

a period of time that is the lesser of:

(a) The 24-month period beginning on the first day of the employee’s absence for military
leave.

(b) The period beginning on the first day of the employee’s absence for military leave and
ending on the date that he/she fails to return from service or apply for reemployment.

If the duration of an employee’s approved military service is less than 31 days, the employee may

purchase continuing health care coverage under the department’s health plan for no more than

the regular employee share. If the approved military service is 31 days or more, the Department

will charge the employee for no more than 102 percent of the full premium of the health care plan

(38 USC § 4317).

1114.8   RETURN FROM DUTY

Employees returning from approved military leave of absence must report to work as follows:

(a) Employees returning from an approved military duty leave during time of war or
national emergency must report to work no later than six months following the
separation from military service or no later than six months after the end of the war
or emergency, absent unusual circumstances. The right to reemployment does not
extend to an employee who fails to return within 12 months after the first date he/she
could terminate active military service (Military and Veterans Code § 395.1).

(b) For periods of service less than 31 days, employees must report back to work no
later than the beginning of the first shift that begins on the first full day that follows
the end of the employee’s service period, plus a reasonable time to travel to the
employee’s residence, plus eight hours. If reporting within this period is impossible or
unreasonable through no fault of the employee, the employee must return as soon as
possible after expiration of the eight-hour period (38 USC § 4312(e)(1)(A)).

(c) For periods of service of more than 30 days but less than 181 days, employees must
submit an application for reemployment no later than 14 days after completing service,
or, if impossible or unreasonable to do so through no fault of the employee, no later
than the next first full calendar day when it is possible to do so (38 USC § 4312(e)
(1)(C)).

For periods of service of more than 180 days, employees must submit an application for

reemployment no later than 90 days after completion of service (38 USC § 4312(e)(1)(D)).

Employees who are recovering from an illness or injury incurred in or aggravated during military

service, must report to the Department or apply for reemployment as provided in this policy at the

end of the period necessary to recover from such illness or injury. The recovery period may not



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Military Leave

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Military Leave - 150

exceed two years, except when circumstances beyond the employee’s control exist (38 USC §

4312(e)(2)(A)).

An employee who fails to report or apply for reemployment in a timely manner will be subject to the

department’s rules of conduct and established policies covering absence from scheduled work.

1114.9   REEMPLOYMENT RIGHTS

An employee returning from an approved temporary military duty leave of absence is generally

entitled to reinstatement to the position and benefits he/she would have attained if not absent for

military duty or, in some cases, a comparable job.

1114.9.1   FORMER POSITION

If such position no longer exists, the employee is entitled to reinstatement to a position in the same

class with like seniority status and pay or a comparable vacant position for which the employee

is qualified (Military and Veterans Code § 395).

An employee returning from approved regular active military leave is entitled to reinstatement

in the position that he/she would have attained had the employee not taken leave. If the leave

exceeded 90 days, the employee is also entitled to a position of like seniority, status and pay (38

USC § 4313(a)(1) and (2)).

If an employee returning from approved military leave is not able to perform the essential duties

of the position the employee would have attained, the Department will make reasonable efforts

to help the employee become qualified (20 CFR 1002.198). If the employee remains unable

to perform the essential duties of the position after the department’s reasonable efforts, the

employee is entitled to his/her previously held position at the time of departure or, in the case

the leave exceeded 90 days, a position of like seniority, status and pay (38 USC § 4313(a)(2)).

Where an employee remains unqualified for both of these positions after reasonable efforts by

the Department, the employee is entitled to the nearest approximation to these positions (38 USC

§ 4313(a)(4)).

When a returning employee cannot become qualified because of a disability incurred in or

aggravated during uniformed service, the Department, after making reasonable accommodations,

must find a position of equivalent seniority, status and pay for which the employee is qualified, or

the nearest equivalent (38 USC § 4313(a)(3) and 20 CFR 1002.198).

1114.9.2   COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS

Upon return from regular active military duty, an employee is entitled to seniority and seniority-

based rights and benefits, including, but not limited to:

(a) Receiving credit for the time spent in uniformed service under honorable conditions

for purposes of seniority, retirement, promotion and merit salary increases (20 CFR

1002.210).



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Military Leave

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Military Leave - 151

(b) Receiving credit for time spent on approved military leave for purposes of calculating

eligibility for leave under the Family and Medical Leave Act and the California Family

Rights Act (20 CFR 1002.210).

(c) Returning to the level in the salary range that the employee would have attained had

he/she not left on approved military leave (20 CFR 1002.236).

(d) Receiving the same contribution to retirement benefits upon reemployment that the

Department would have contributed had he/she not taken leave (20 CFR 1002.261).

(e) Being treated as not having a break in service for purposes of participation, vesting

and accrual of pension benefits (38 USC § 4316; 38 USC § 4318(a)).

(f) Reenrolling in department health benefits without any waiting period.

(g) Restoring benefits that were elected by the employee and his/her dependents at the

time military service began, as well as to any other benefits that began during the

leave for which the employee would reasonably have become eligible.

1114.9.3   EMPLOYEE REEMPLOYMENT RESPONSIBILITIES

An employee returning from approved regular active military leave is entitled to reinstatement

rights only if he/she 38 USC § 4312:

(a) Has given advance written or verbal notice of such service, unless precluded by

military necessity.

(b) Has served in the uniformed service for no more than five years cumulatively while

employed at the Graton Fire Protection District, except as provided in 38 USC §

4312(c).

(c) Has been issued a discharge under honorable conditions.

(d) Reports to the Graton Fire Protection District or applies for reemployment in a timely

manner as provided in this policy.

(e) In the case that the approved military leave exceeds 30 days, submits documentation

showing:

1. The application for reemployment is timely.

2. The employee has not exceeded the cumulative five-year limit of service in the

uniformed services, except as provided in 38 USC § 4312(c).

1114.9.4   DEPARTMENT REEMPLOYMENT RESPONSIBILITIES

The Department shall promptly reinstate employees entitled to reinstatement but no later than 14

days after a request for reinstatement. In the case of unusual circumstances, the Department shall

reinstate employees as soon as practicable (20 CFR 1002.181).

The Department is not required to reemploy a person after approved military leave if any of the

following conditions exist (38 USC § 4312(d)):



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Military Leave

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Military Leave - 152

(a) The department’s circumstances have so changed as to make such reemployment
impossible or unreasonable.

(b) Such reemployment would impose an undue hardship upon the Department.

(c) The person held a non-recurrent job for a brief period of time and had no reasonable
expectation that such employment would continue.

Supervisors should consult with the Administration or legal counsel before determining whether

any of these conditions exist.

1114.10   RETENTION

An employee who is reinstated after returning from approved military leave may not be discharged,

except for cause (38 USC § 4316(c) and 20 CFR 1002.247):

(a) For 180 days after the date of reemployment if the most recent period of military service
was more than 30 days and less than 181 days.

(b) For one year after the date of reemployment if the most recent period of military service
was more than 180 days.

1114.11   DISCRIMINATION AND RETALIATION PROHIBITED

Discrimination or retaliation against any employee for participation in military service is prohibited,

whether the employee volunteers or is ordered to active military service (38 USC § 4311 and

Military and Veterans Code § 394).



Policy

1115
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Pregnancy Disability Leave - 153

Pregnancy Disability Leave

1115.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to establish guidelines for the Graton Fire Protection District

to manage pregnancy disability leave in accordance with the California Fair Employment

and Housing Act (FEHA) (Government Code § 12945; 2 CCR 11040) and the Pregnancy

Discrimination Act of 1978 (42 USC § 2000e(k)).

1115.1.1   DEFINITIONS

Definitions related to this policy include:

Interactive process - An informal meeting between employer and employee, designed to identify

the precise limitations resulting from a disability and any potential reasonable accommodations

that could overcome those limitations and allow the employee to return to work, either in their

usual and customary position or some other type of work.

1115.2   POLICY

The Graton Fire Protection District recognizes pregnancy as a disability and shall treat pregnant

members in a manner consistent with other members with disabilities. The Department shall defer

to a pregnant member’s qualified health care provider in assessing the member’s ability to work.

1115.3   ELIGIBLE MEMBERS

Members who are disabled by pregnancy, childbirth or related medical conditions are eligible for

pregnancy disability leave. There is no required minimum amount of service time or number of

hours worked in order to be eligible (2 CCR 11037).

1115.4   TIME AND DURATION OF LEAVE

Under certain circumstances, an eligible member may be entitled to take pregnancy disability

leave of up to four months and leave allowed under the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) of

up to 12 weeks, for a combined total of approximately seven months.

Members may take up to four months of pregnancy disability leave per pregnancy for any actual

disability caused by pregnancy, childbirth or related medical conditions (Government Code §

12945).

Pregnancy disability leave need not be taken in one continuous period of time and may be taken

intermittently, on an as-needed basis (2 CCR 11042).

Time off needed for prenatal care, severe morning sickness, doctor-ordered bed rest, childbirth

and recovery from childbirth is allowed by pregnancy disability leave.

If affected by pregnancy, childbirth or related medical conditions, a member may be permitted

to transfer to a less strenuous or hazardous position or to less strenuous or hazardous duties,

if such a transfer is recommended by the member’s physician after reviewing the member’s job

description and required duties (2 CCR 11041).



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Pregnancy Disability Leave

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Pregnancy Disability Leave - 154

A member may also receive reasonable accommodation for conditions related to pregnancy,

childbirth or related medical conditions, if recommended by a qualified health care professional

(Government Code § 12945(3)).

1115.5   BENEFITS DURING LEAVE

A member on pregnancy disability leave may receive any group health insurance coverage that

was provided before the leave (2 CCR 11044; Government Code § 12945) if:

(a) The member is eligible for concurrent family medical leave.

(b) The member has not already exhausted the 12-week group health insurance coverage

benefit in the current FMLA eligibility period.

The Department shall maintain and pay for the coverage for the duration of the leave as required

in Government Code § 12945(2).

The Department may recover premiums it paid to maintain health coverage, as provided by FMLA

laws and Government Code § 12945(2), if a member does not return to work following pregnancy

disability leave.

A member on pregnancy disability leave, who is not eligible to receive group health insurance

coverage, may receive health insurance coverage in conjunction with Consolidated Omnibus

Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) guidelines by making monthly premium payments to the

District.

Sick leave, vacation leave and seniority do not accrue while a member is on unpaid pregnancy

disability leave.

1115.6   USE OF OTHER LEAVES

Members are required to use accrued sick leave for any authorized pregnancy disability leave.

At the member’s option, accrued vacation or other accrued time off may be applied toward the

pregnancy disability leave. If no accrued sick or vacation leave is available, pregnancy disability

leave is unpaid (2 CCR 11044).

Pregnancy disability leave will run concurrently with FMLA and any short-term disability leave for

those members who are eligible for both.

1115.7   PROCEDURE

The following procedures apply to all members requesting pregnancy disability leave:

(a) Members who wish to take pregnancy disability leave shall provide their supervisor

with 30 days of advance notice if the need for leave is foreseeable or as soon as

practicable if the need for leave was not foreseeable (2 CCR 11050). The 30-day

advance notice may be waived with the supervisor’s written approval.

(b) A member shall submit a written request for pregnancy disability leave approved by

the member’s supervisor or the Administration before the leave begins. The request



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Pregnancy Disability Leave

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Pregnancy Disability Leave - 155

shall be supported by a written certification from a physician or qualified health care

professional that the member is disabled from working by pregnancy, childbirth or a

related medical condition. The certification must state the expected duration of the

disability and the expected date of return to work (Government Code § 12945; 2 CCR

11050).

(c) The supervisor should forward requests for pregnancy disability leave, including

medical certifications, to the Administration and ensure that the pregnancy disability

leave or transfer request is responded to as soon as practicable and in no event later

than 10 days after receiving the request (2 CCR 11050).

(d) Members shall submit any request for an extension of leave in writing to their

supervisor prior to the agreed date of return. The request for extension must be

supported by a written certification from the attending physician that the member

continues to be disabled by pregnancy, childbirth or a related medical condition.

(e) Members returning from pregnancy disability leave shall provide a written statement

from a qualified health care professional attesting that the member is fit to return to

full duty (2 CCR 11050).

1115.8   REINSTATEMENT FOLLOWING LEAVE

Upon the expiration of pregnancy disability leave or transfer, and the department’s receipt of a

written return to full duty certification, the member will be reinstated to her original or an equivalent

position, unless the position has been eliminated for a legitimate business reason during the leave

(2 CCR 11043).

If the same position is no longer available, as in a layoff, the member will be entitled to a position

that is comparable in pay, location, job content, promotional opportunity and geographic location

if such a comparable position exists.

If upon return from pregnancy disability leave a member is unable to perform the essential

functions of the job because of a disability, the member’s supervisor should work with the

Administration or legal counsel to engage in an interactive process with the member to identify a

potential reasonable accommodation.

1115.9   RESPONSIBILITY

Supervisors should work with the Administration to review requests for leave and any request

to return to duty under temporary modified duty limitations. The Administration should advise

the supervisor and inform members of their rights and responsibilities. Also see the Temporary

Modified Duty Assignments Policy and the Return to Work Policy.

1115.10   RECORDS

The Department will maintain leave-related records for at least four years or in compliance with

the department’s established record retention schedule (Government Code § 12946).



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Pregnancy Disability Leave

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Pregnancy Disability Leave - 156

Records and documents related to doctor certifications and other medical information created for

purposes of complying with FMLA/California Family Rights Act (CFRA) and this policy shall be

maintained as confidential medical records in separate files from the member’s personnel files.



Policy

1116
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Nepotism and Conflicting Relationships - 157

Nepotism and Conflicting Relationships

1116.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to ensure equal opportunity and effective employment practices by

avoiding actual or perceived favoritism, discrimination or actual or potential conflicts of interest

by or between members of this department (Government Code § 12940). These employment

practices include: recruiting, testing, hiring, compensation, assignment, promotion, use of facilities,

access to training opportunities, supervision, performance appraisal, discipline and workplace

safety and security.

1116.1.1   DEFINITIONS

Definitions related to this policy include:

Business relationship - Serving as an employee, independent contractor, compensated

consultant, owner, board member, shareholder or investor in an outside business, company,

partnership, corporation, venture or other transaction, where the employee’s annual interest,

compensation, investment or obligation is greater than $250.

Conflict of interest - Any actual, perceived or potential conflict of interest in which it reasonably

appears that an employee’s action, inaction or decisions are or may be influenced by the

employee’s personal or business relationship.

Nepotism - The practice of showing favoritism to relatives over others in appointment,

employment, promotion or advancement by any public official in a position to influence these

personnel decisions.

Personal relationship - Includes marriage, cohabitation, dating or any other intimate relationship

beyond mere friendship.

Public official - A supervisor, officer or employee vested with authority by law, rule or regulation

or to whom authority has been delegated.

Relative - An employee’s parent, stepparent, spouse, domestic partner, significant other, child

(natural, adopted or step), sibling or grandparent.

Subordinate - An employee who is subject to the temporary or ongoing direct or indirect authority

of a supervisor.

Supervisor - An employee who has temporary or ongoing direct or indirect authority over the

actions, decisions, evaluation and/or performance of a subordinate employee.

1116.2   POLICY

The Graton Fire Protection District is committed to fair and equitable treatment of all members

and to creating a work atmosphere that is free of both actual and apparent conflicts of interest

that could compromise this principle.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Nepotism and Conflicting Relationships

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Nepotism and Conflicting Relationships - 158

1116.3   RESTRICTED DUTIES AND ASSIGNMENTS

The Department will not prohibit all personal or business relationships between employees.

However, in order to avoid nepotism or other inappropriate conflicts, the following reasonable

restrictions shall apply:

(a) Employees are prohibited from directly supervising, occupying a position in the line of
supervision or being directly supervised by any other member who is a relative or with
whom they are involved in a personal or business relationship.

1. If circumstances require that such a supervisor/subordinate relationship exist
temporarily, the supervisor shall make every reasonable effort to defer matters
pertaining to the involved member to an uninvolved supervisor.

2. When personnel and circumstances permit, the Department will attempt to
make every reasonable effort to avoid placing such members in supervisor/
subordinate situations. The Department, however, reserves the right to transfer
or reassign any member to another position within the same classification in
order to avoid conflicts with any provision of this policy.

(b) Members are prohibited from participating in, contributing to or recommending
promotions, assignments, performance evaluations, transfers or other personnel
decisions affecting an member who is a relative or with whom they are involved in a
personal or business relationship.

(c) Whenever possible, trainers should not be assigned to train relatives. Trainers are
prohibited from entering into or maintaining personal or business relationships with any
member they are assigned to train until such time as the training has been successfully
completed and, if an member, off probation.

(d) To avoid actual or perceived conflicts of interest, members of this department should
refrain from developing or maintaining personal or financial relationships with victims,
witnesses or other individuals during the course of or as a direct result of any official
contact.

(e) Except as required in the performance of official duties or, in the case of
immediate relatives, members shall not develop or maintain personal or financial
relationships with any individual they know or reasonably should know is under
criminal investigation, is a convicted felon, parolee, fugitive or registered sex or arson
offender or who engages in serious violations of state or federal laws.

1116.3.1   MEMBER RESPONSIBILITY

Prior to entering into any personal or business relationship or other circumstance which the

employee knows or reasonably should know could create a conflict of interest or other violation of

this policy, the employee shall promptly notify his/her uninvolved, next highest level of supervisor.

Whenever any member is placed in circumstances that would require the member to take

enforcement action or provide official information or services to any relative or individual with

whom the member is involved in a personal or business relationship, the employee shall promptly

notify his/her uninvolved, immediate supervisor. In the event that no uninvolved supervisor is



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Nepotism and Conflicting Relationships

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Nepotism and Conflicting Relationships - 159

immediately available, the member shall promptly notify dispatch to have another uninvolved

member either relieve the involved member or minimally remain present to witness the action.

1116.3.2   SUPERVISOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Upon being notified of, or otherwise becoming aware of any circumstance that could result in or

constitute an actual or potential violation of this policy, a supervisor shall take all reasonable steps

to promptly mitigate or avoid such violations whenever possible.

Supervisors shall also promptly notify the Fire Chief of such actual or potential violations through

the chain of command.



Policy

1117
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Member Speech, Expression and Social
Networking - 160

Member Speech, Expression and Social

Networking

1117.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

This policy is intended to address issues associated with member use of social networking sites

and to provide guidelines for the regulation and balancing of member speech and expression with

the needs of the Department.

Nothing in this policy is intended to prohibit or infringe upon any communication, speech or

expression that is protected or privileged under law. This includes speech and expression

protected under state or federal constitutions as well as labor or other applicable laws. For

example, this policy does not limit an employee or Volunteer from speaking as a private citizen,

including acting as an authorized member of a recognized bargaining unit, about matters of public

concern, such as misconduct or corruption.

Members are encouraged to consult with their supervisor regarding any questions arising from

the application or potential application of this policy.

1117.1.1   APPLICABILITY

This policy applies to all forms of communication including, but not limited to, film, video,

print media, public or private speech, use of all Internet services, including the World Wide

Web, email, file transfer, remote computer access, news services, social networking, social media,

instant messaging, blogs, forums, video and other file-sharing sites.

1117.2   POLICY

Fire District members occupy a trusted position in the community, and thus, their statements have

the potential to contravene the policies and performance of this department. Due to the nature

of the work and influence associated with the fire profession, it is necessary that members of

this department be subject to certain reasonable limitations on their speech and expression. To

achieve its mission and efficiently provide service to the public, the Graton Fire Protection District

will carefully balance the individual member’s rights against the department’s needs and interests

when exercising a reasonable degree of control over its members’ speech and expression.

1117.3   SAFETY

Members should consider carefully the implications of their speech or any other form of expression

when using the Internet. Speech and expression that may negatively affect the safety of the Graton

Fire Protection District members, such as posting personal information in a public forum, can

result in compromising a member’s home address or family ties. Members should therefore not

disseminate or post any information on any forum or medium that could reasonably be anticipated

to compromise the safety of any member, a member’s family or associates. Examples of the type

of information that could reasonably be expected to compromise safety include:

• Disclosing the address of a fellow firefighter.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Member Speech, Expression and Social Networking

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Member Speech, Expression and Social
Networking - 161

• Otherwise disclosing where another firefighter can be located off-duty.

1117.4   PROHIBITED SPEECH, EXPRESSION AND CONDUCT

To meet the department’s safety, performance and public-trust needs, the following is prohibited

unless the speech is otherwise protected (for example, an employee or volunteer speaking as a

private citizen, including acting as an authorized member of a recognized bargaining unit, on a

matter of public concern):

(a) Speech or expression made pursuant to an official duty that tends to compromise
or damage the mission, function, reputation or professionalism of the Graton Fire
Protection District or its members.

(b) Speech or expression that, while not made pursuant to an official duty, is significantly
linked to, or related to, the Graton Fire Protection District and tends to compromise
or damage the mission, function, reputation or professionalism of the Graton Fire
Protection District or its members. Examples may include:

1. Statements that indicate disregard for the law of the state or U.S. Constitution.

2. Expression that demonstrates support for criminal activity.

3. Participating in sexually explicit photographs or videos for compensation or
distribution.

(c) Speech or expression that could reasonably be foreseen as having a negative impact
on the credibility of the member as a witness. For example, posting statements or
expressions to a website that glorify or endorse dishonesty, unlawful discrimination
or illegal behavior.

(d) Speech or expression of any form that could reasonably be foreseen as having a
negative impact on the safety of the members of the Department.

(e) Speech or expression that is contrary to the canons of the Firefighters' Code of Ethics
as adopted by the Graton Fire Protection District.

(f) Use or disclosure, through whatever means, of any information, photograph, video or
other recording obtained or accessible as a result of employment with the Department
for financial or personal gain, or any disclosure of such materials without the express
authorization of the Fire Chief or the authorized designee.

(g) Posting, transmitting or disseminating any photographs, video or audio recordings,
likenesses or images of department logos, emblems, uniforms, badges, patches,
marked vehicles, equipment or other material that specifically identifies the Graton
Fire Protection District on any personal or social networking or other website or web
page, without the express authorization of the Fire Chief.

(h) Accessing websites for non-authorized purposes, or use of any personal
communication device, game device or media device, whether personally or
department owned, for personal purposes while on-duty, except in the following
circumstances:

1. When brief personal communication may be warranted by the circumstances
(e.g., inform family of extended hours).



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Member Speech, Expression and Social Networking

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Member Speech, Expression and Social
Networking - 162

2. During authorized breaks; however, such usage should be limited as much
as practicable to areas out of sight and sound of the public and shall not be
disruptive to the work environment.

Members must take reasonable and prompt action to remove any content, including content

posted by others, that is in violation of this policy from any web page or website maintained by

the member (e.g., social or personal website).

1117.4.1   UNAUTHORIZED ENDORSEMENTS AND ADVERTISEMENTS

While members are not restricted from engaging in the following activities as private citizens or

as authorized members of a recognized bargaining unit, members may not represent the Graton

Fire Protection District or identify themselves in any way that could be reasonably perceived

as representing the Graton Fire Protection District in order to do any of the following, unless

specifically authorized by the Fire Chief (Government Code § 3206; Government Code § 3252):

(a) Endorse, support, oppose or contradict any political campaign or initiative.

(b) Endorse, support, oppose or contradict any social issue, cause or religion.

(c) Endorse, support or oppose any product, service, company or other commercial entity.

(d) Appear in any commercial, social or nonprofit publication or any motion picture, film,
video, public broadcast or on any website.

Additionally, when it can reasonably be construed that a member, acting in his/her individual

capacity or through an outside group or organization (e.g., bargaining group), is affiliated with

this department, the member shall give a specific disclaiming statement that any such speech or

expression is not representative of the Graton Fire Protection District.

Members retain their right to vote as they choose, to support candidates of their choice and

to express their opinions as private citizens, including as authorized members of a recognized

bargaining unit, on political subjects and candidates at all times while off-duty. However, members

may not use their official authority or influence to interfere with or affect the result of an election or

a nomination for office. Members are also prohibited from directly or indirectly using their official

authority to coerce, command or advise another member to pay, lend or contribute anything of

value to a party, committee, organization, agency or person for political purposes (5 USC § 1502).

1117.4.2   POLITICAL ACTIVITY

The following rights are retained by firefighters by statute and are extended to all other members

by the Graton Fire Protection District (Government Code § 3252).

(a) No member shall be prohibited from engaging in political activity, unless otherwise
prohibited by law, in violation of department policy or any time a member is on-duty
or in uniform.

(b) Members shall not be coerced or required to engage in political activity.

(c) A member can seek election to, or serve as a member of, the governing board of a
school district or any local agency where he/she is not employed, including, but not
limited to, any city, county, special district or political subdivision.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Member Speech, Expression and Social Networking

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Member Speech, Expression and Social
Networking - 163

1117.5   PRIVACY EXPECTATION

Members forfeit any expectation of privacy with regard to emails, texts, or anything

published, shared, transmitted, or maintained through file-sharing software or any Internet site

that is accessed, transmitted, received, or reviewed on any department technology system (see

the Information Technology Use Policy for additional guidance).

The Department shall not require a member to disclose a personal username or password for

accessing personal social media, or open a personal social website; however, the Department

may request access when it is reasonably believed to be relevant to the investigation of allegations

of work-related misconduct (Labor Code § 980).

1117.6   CONSIDERATIONS

In determining whether to grant authorization of any speech or conduct that is prohibited under

this policy, the factors that the Fire Chief or the authorized designee should consider include:

(a) Whether the speech or conduct would negatively affect the efficiency of delivering
public services.

(b) Whether the speech or conduct would be contrary to the good order of
the Department or the efficiency or morale of its members.

(c) Whether the speech or conduct would reflect unfavorably upon the Department.

(d) Whether the speech or conduct would negatively affect the member’s appearance of
impartiality in the performance of his/her duties.

(e) Whether similar speech or conduct has been previously authorized.

(f) Whether the speech or conduct may be protected and outweighs any interest of
the Department.

1117.7   TRAINING

Subject to available resources, the Department should provide training regarding the limitations

on speech, expression and the use of social networking to firefighters and supervisors.



Policy

1118
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Anti-Retaliation - 164

Anti-Retaliation

1118.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

This policy prohibits retaliation against members who identify workplace issues, such as fraud,

waste, abuse of authority, gross mismanagement or any inappropriate conduct or practices,

including violations that may pose a threat to the health, safety or well-being of members.

This policy does not prohibit actions taken for nondiscriminatory or non-retaliatory reasons, such

as discipline for cause.

These guidelines are intended to supplement and not limit members’ access to other applicable

remedies. Nothing in this policy shall diminish the rights or remedies of a member pursuant to any

applicable federal law, provision of the U.S. Constitution, law, or ordinance.

1118.2   POLICY

The Graton Fire Protection District has a zero tolerance for retaliation and is committed to taking

reasonable steps to protect from retaliation members who, in good faith, engage in permitted

behavior or who report or participate in the reporting or investigation of workplace issues. All

complaints of retaliation will be taken seriously and will be promptly and appropriately investigated.

1118.3   RETALIATION PROHIBITED

No member may retaliate against any person for engaging in lawful or otherwise permitted

behavior; for opposing a practice believed to be unlawful, unethical, discriminatory or retaliatory;

for reporting or making a complaint under this policy; or for participating in any investigation related

to a complaint under this or any other policy.

Retaliation includes any adverse action or conduct, including, but not limited to:

• Refusing to hire or denying a promotion.

• Extending the probationary period.

• Unjustified reassignment of duties or change of work schedule.

• Real or implied threats or other forms of intimidation to dissuade the reporting of
wrongdoing or filing of a complaint, or as a consequence of having reported or
participated in protected activity.

• Taking unwarranted disciplinary action.

• Spreading rumors about the person filing the complaint or about the alleged
wrongdoing.

• Shunning or unreasonably avoiding a person because he/she has engaged in
protected activity.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Anti-Retaliation

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Anti-Retaliation - 165

1118.4   COMPLAINTS OF RETALIATION

Any member who feels he/she has been retaliated against in violation of this policy should promptly

report the matter to any supervisor, a command staff member, the Fire Chief or the District Fire

Chief.

Members shall act in good faith, not engage in unwarranted reporting of trivial or minor deviations

or transgressions, and make reasonable efforts to verify facts before making any complaint in order

to avoid baseless allegations. Members shall not report or state an intention to report information

or an allegation knowing it to be false or with willful or reckless disregard for the truth or falsity of

the information, or otherwise act in bad faith.

Investigations are generally more effective when the identity of the reporting member is known,

thereby allowing investigators to obtain additional information from the reporting member.

However, complaints may be made anonymously. All reasonable efforts shall be made to protect

the reporting member’s identity. However, confidential information may be disclosed to the extent

required by law or to the degree necessary to conduct an adequate investigation and make a

determination regarding a complaint. In some situations, the investigative process may not be

complete unless the source of the information and a statement by the member is part of the

investigative process.

1118.5   SUPERVISOR RESPONSIBILITIES

Supervisors are expected to remain familiar with this policy and ensure that members under their

command are aware of its provisions.

The responsibilities of supervisors include, but are not limited to:

(a) Ensuring complaints of retaliation are investigated as provided in the Personnel
Complaints Policy.

(b) Receiving all complaints in a fair and impartial manner.

(c) Documenting the complaint and any steps taken to resolve the problem.

(d) Acknowledging receipt of the complaint, notifying the Fire Chief via the chain of
command and explaining to the member how the complaint will be handled.

(e) Taking appropriate and reasonable steps to mitigate any further violations of this
policy.

(f) Monitoring the work environment to ensure that any member making a complaint is
not subjected to further retaliation.

(g) Periodically following up with the complainant to ensure that retaliation is not
continuing.

(h) Not interfering with or denying the right of a member to make any complaint.

(i) Taking reasonable steps to accommodate requests for assignment or schedule
changes made by a member who may be the target of retaliation if it would likely
mitigate the potential for further violations of this policy.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Anti-Retaliation

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Anti-Retaliation - 166

1118.6   COMMAND STAFF RESPONSIBILITIES

The Fire Chief should communicate to all supervisors the prohibition against retaliation.

Command staff shall treat all complaints as serious matters and shall ensure that prompt actions

take place, including, but not limited to:

(a) Communicating to all members the prohibition against retaliation.

(b) Reviewing complaint investigations in a timely manner.

(c) Taking steps toward remediation of any inappropriate conduct or condition and
instituting measures to eliminate or minimize the likelihood of recurrence.

(d) Communicating the outcome to the complainant in a timely manner.

1118.7   WHISTLE-BLOWING

California law protects members who (Labor Code § 1102.5; Government Code § 53296 et seq.):

(a) Report a violation of a state or federal statute or regulation to a government or law
enforcement agency, including the member’s supervisor or any other member with the
authority to investigate the reported violation.

(b) Provide information or testify before a public body if the member has reasonable cause
to believe a violation of law occurred.

(c) Refuse to participate in an activity that would result in a violation of a state or federal
statute or regulation.

(d) File a complaint with a local agency about gross mismanagement or a significant waste
of funds, an abuse of authority or a substantial and specific danger to public health
or safety. Members shall exhaust all available administrative remedies prior to filing
a formal complaint.

(e) Are family members of persons who have engaged in any protected acts described
above.

Members are encouraged to report any legal violations through the chain of command (Labor

Code § 1102.5).

Members who believe they have been the subject of retaliation for engaging in such protected

behaviors should promptly report it to a supervisor. Supervisors should refer the complaint to

the Fire Chief or authorized designee through the appropriate supervisory chain of command for

investigation pursuant to the Personnel Complaints Policy.

1118.7.1   DISPLAY OF WHISTLE-BLOWER LAWS

The Department shall display a notice to members regarding their rights and responsibilities

under the whistle-blower laws, including the whistle-blower hotline maintained by the Office of the

Attorney General (Labor Code § 1102.8).

1118.8   RECORDS RETENTION AND RELEASE

The Custodian of Records shall ensure that documentation of investigations is maintained in

accordance with the established records retention schedules.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Anti-Retaliation

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Anti-Retaliation - 167

1118.9   TRAINING

This policy should be reviewed with each new member.

All members should receive periodic refresher training on the requirements of this policy.



Policy

1218
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

On-Duty Injuries - 212

On-Duty Injuries

1218.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to assist the Graton Fire Protection District in accurately reporting

work-related illnesses and injuries and managing workers’ compensation costs. The policy also

provides department members with information concerning California state-mandated workers’

compensation benefits and assistance to members who are either injured or develop a work-

related illness as a result of their employment (8 CCR 9880).

Nothing in this policy is intended to confer any rights greater than those provided by state workers’

compensation laws._

1218.1.1   DEFINITIONS

Definitions related to this policy include:

Permanent and stationary - The status of an injured member whose medical condition has

reached maximum medical improvement.

Permanent disability - The status of an injured member who is permanently disabled.

Temporary disability - The status of an injured member who is unable to return to work because

the member has not yet achieved a permanent and stationary status.

Third-party administrator - An entity responsible for adjusting workers’ compensation claims on

behalf of an employer.

Work-related injury - Any injury, disease, or mental health issue arising out of employment or

occurring in the course of employment duties (Labor Code § 3208; Labor Code § 3208.3; Labor

Code § 3212 et seq.); includes the contraction of a communicable disease (Labor Code § 5500.5).

1218.2   POLICY

It is the policy of the Graton Fire Protection District to provide workers’ compensation benefits and

assistance to all members who incur a work-related illness or injury. The Department shall display

a notice to employees regarding access to benefits and provide new members with a written notice

concerning their rights, benefits, and obligations under workers’ compensation laws (8 CCR 9880

and 8 CCR 9881).

1218.3   PROCEDURE

Work-related injuries or illnesses incurred by members may be covered by workers’ compensation

through the Graton Fire Protection District. To be considered work-related, the injury or illness

must arise from and occur in the course of employment. When authorized by a physician, medical

expenses related to the treatment of a work-related injury or illness may include doctor, hospital,

surgical, physical therapy, prescription medication, or medical equipment. Workers’ compensation

may pay for wages lost as a result of an injury or illness, provided that absence from work is related

to a work injury or illness and is authorized by a physician.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

On-Duty Injuries

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

On-Duty Injuries - 213

1218.3.1   MEMBER RESPONSIBILITIES

A member who is injured on the job must immediately report his/her injury to a supervisor or chief

officer. Any member who is involved in any accident while on-duty shall report such injury, illness,

or accident as soon as practicable to his/her supervisor (8 CCR 14300.35).

An injured member or member who has suffered a work-related illness shall report as soon as

practicable to his/her immediate supervisor the medical findings concerning the injury, the extent

of any work restrictions and the anticipated duration, if known. In addition, such members are

required to promptly submit all medical releases, whether partial or full releases, to a supervisor.

Members should contact the person designated by the Department for more information

concerning workers’ compensation benefits and payment of wages while off-duty due to a work-

related injury or illness.

A member may be treated for an on-duty injury or illness by a personal physician that the member

pre-designates in writing, prior to the injury or illness. The member may use the optional DWC

Form 9783 Pre-designation of Personal Physician for this purpose (8 CCR 9780.1).

Members shall report any near-miss incident to their supervisor as soon as practicable. A near-

miss incident is one where a mishap occurs but the member avoids serious injury or illness (e.g.,

slipping on an uneven surface but not falling).

1218.3.2   SUPERVISOR RESPONSIBILITIES

If injury is life-threatening, Emergency Medical Services (EMS) should begin or be summoned

immediately.

If the injury is of a less emergent nature, the supervisor should ensure the member contacts

the department-designated occupational medical provider. If the member has a pre-designated

personal physician on file, the member may be treated by that physician.

If the injury does not require medical attention, the supervisor shall report the injury. The supervisor

shall sign the report and indicate that the member desired no medical attention at the time of the

report.

Within 24 hours of notification of an injury, the supervisor shall give the member a DWC-1

Worker's Compensation Claim Form. The supervisor should have the injured member complete

the member’s portion of the form. If the member is unable to complete the DWC-1, the form may

either be sent to the member’s home or completed by the supervisor. The supervisor should

complete the employer’s portion as well.

The supervisor shall ensure that an Employer’s Report of Occupational Illness/Injury (Form 5020)

is filed with the Department of Industrial Relations within five days of the notice of injury (8 CCR

14004).

Supervisors receiving a report of a near-miss incident should prepare a detailed description of

the incident and any recommendations or efforts to mitigate any identified hazards. Supervisors

should forward the report to the Administration Division.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

On-Duty Injuries

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

On-Duty Injuries - 214

1218.3.3   ADMINISTRATION RESPONSIBILITY

The Administration should evaluate the request to return to work and any necessary medical

verification and make a determination whether:

• The member may return to work based on the medical documentation provided by

the member.

• It is necessary to engage in an interactive process to determine a reasonable

accommodation.

• It is necessary and appropriate to send the member to a fitness-for-duty evaluation.

The Administration, in consultation with the appropriate Division Officer will make a

recommendation to the Fire Chief or the authorized designee whether the member should be

returned to full-duty or modified-duty, and will communicate the decision to the member regarding

his/her return to work.

1218.3.4   RETURN TO WORK FOLLOWING INJURY OR ILLNESS

It is the member’s responsibility to keep the Department informed regarding his/her absence and

to immediately advise the person designated by the Department when the member believes that

he/she will be released to return to work, with or without limitations. If practicable, the member

shall provide advance notice of his/her potential return to work. If requested, it is the member’s

responsibility to provide medical verification.

A summary of steps for returning to work following an injury or illness can be located in the Return

to Work Policy.

1218.3.5   TEMPORARY MODIFIED-DUTY ASSIGNMENT

A temporary modified-duty assignment may be available for a member with temporary limitations

on his/her ability to perform normal job duties. See the Temporary Modified Duty Assignments

Policy for additional information.

1218.4   SETTLEMENT OF INJURY CLAIMS

Occasionally, a member’s work-related injury or illness results from the negligent or wrongful acts

of another, for which the member, the District, and/or other insurers are entitled to recover civilly.

To ensure that the District’s interests are protected and that the member has the benefit of the

District’s experience in these matters, the following procedure shall be followed.

1218.4.1   MEMBER OFFERS TO SETTLE

When a member sustains a work-related injury or illness caused by another person and is then

approached by the person or an agent, insurance company or attorney and offered a settlement

of claims, that member shall take no action other than to make a written report of this contact to

his/her supervisor as soon as possible.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

On-Duty Injuries

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

On-Duty Injuries - 215

1218.4.2   SETTLEMENT AUTHORIZATION

No less than 10 days prior to accepting and finalizing the settlement of any third-party claim arising

out of or related to an on-duty injury, the member shall provide the Fire Chief with written notice of

the proposed terms of such settlement. In no case shall the member accept a settlement without

first providing such written notice to the Fire Chief. The purpose of such notice is to permit the

District to determine whether the offered settlement will affect any claim the District may have

regarding payment for damages to equipment or reimbursement for wages against the person

who caused the accident or injury and to protect the District’s right of subrogation, while ensuring

that the member’s right to receive compensation for injuries is not affected.

1218.5   MONTHLY WORKERS’ COMPENSATION CLAIM REVIEW

A representative from Administration will ensure there is a monthly workers’ compensation claim

review with appropriate managers from the Administration, any third-party administrator, and the

chief officers, when necessary. At these monthly meetings, the following should be reviewed and

discussed:

• Notable cases, such as those with customer relations, legal, time lost, medical, and
other related claim issues

• Number of the previous month’s new claims categorized by battalion and or section

• Number of permanent disability settlements approved the previous month

• Notable positive claim results

• Any actuarial studies, workers’ compensation program audits, and injury trends

• Executive management direction on complex cases, such as those with organization-
wide impact, future precedent, sub-rosa investigations and the direction of the workers’
compensation and the safety and injury prevention programs.

1218.6   MANAGEMENT REPORTS

There are three key management reports that shall be completed. These reports will provide

management with the necessary reports to ensure the department’s workers’ compensation

program is accomplishing the following:

• Meeting the needs of members following an injury or illness

• Complying with workers’ compensation laws

• Minimizing workers’ compensation costs while ensuring the provision of benefits to
injured/ill members.

The three management reports shall be:

Annual Workers’ Compensation Program Report - This report will summarize the past calendar

year of program activity, including but not limited to settlements, loss control, injury analysis, and

recommendations for program improvement.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

On-Duty Injuries

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

On-Duty Injuries - 216

Annual Actuary Report - An independent actuary shall complete an analysis to project the

reserves needed by the Department to insure its workers’ compensation program. Annual funding

needs are generally based on the actuary’s analysis of the department’s loss history, insurance

levels, and changes in state law.

Annual Third-Party Administrator Stewardship Report - The stewardship report will assist

the Department in measuring the effectiveness of the services contract with the workers’

compensation program third-party administrator. The report will include the following:

• Utilization of the third-party administrator’s services

• Cost savings achieved

• The average incurred and total costs paid per claim

• Workers’ compensation and temporary disability costs paid by fiscal year

• Injuries by body part and nature of loss (e.g., sprain, contusion, laceration)



Policy

1307
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Fire Station Living - 231

Fire Station Living

1307.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE

The purpose of this policy is to provide for the health of all members and visitors by establishing

guidelines for fire station cleanliness and maintenance, to ensure that stations and equipment are

properly maintained and that clean and sanitary conditions exist in the living spaces.

1307.2   POLICY

It is the policy of the Graton Fire Protection District that routine care, maintenance, and cleaning

shall be conducted daily at each station by members on all shifts.

1307.3   PROCEDURE

Each company shall be assigned responsibility for a specific area of the station and should

cooperate with other companies to ensure all duties are completed during the course of a shift.

All fire stations and equipment shall be inspected semi-annually by a Duty Officer. The focus of the

inspections shall be the proper maintenance and overall cleanliness of the station and equipment.

All members should keep desks, cars, beds, and lockers in a neat and clean condition. Supervisors

are responsible for monitoring member housekeeping and hygiene, and immediately addressing

any issue that disrupts the good working order of the station or detracts from a professional image.

(a) The station and equipment shall be maintained in a clean, orderly, and sanitary
condition. Daily tasks to accomplish this shall include but are not limited to:

1. Vacuuming.

2. Sweeping and mopping floors.

3. Dusting.

4. Polishing.

5. Cleaning restrooms.

6. Cleaning apparatus bays.

(a) Additional station and equipment maintenance and cleaning should be
conducted weekly or on an as-needed basis. Sporadic tasks shall be
divided between shifts so there is a shared responsibility for the overall
condition of the station and the equipment.

(b) Safety considerations regarding cleaning and maintenance may include,
but are not limited to:

1. Cleaning and repairing the source of water leaks quickly to avoid
mold growth.

2. Avoiding the use of compressed air to blow dust and debris from
clothing while the clothing is being worn.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Fire Station Living

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Fire Station Living - 232

3. Maintaining cooking appliances and eating utensils in good working
order.

4. Cleaning kitchen hoods and vents at least monthly and ensuring the
hood light is installed and functioning.

5. Providing and clearly labeling first-aid supplies.

6. Posting signs in all restrooms reminding employees/visitors to wash
their hands.

7. Using [department_agency]-provided fall protection systems or fall
protection personal protective equipment when working above
ground level (29 CFR § 1910.140; Labor Code § 142.3).

8. Addressing hazards associated with walking-working surfaces (29
CFR 1910.21 et seq.; Labor Code § 142.3).

All members shall follow established policies and procedures regarding:

• Beginning and end of shift preparation, readiness, equipment inventory, and testing.

• Meal plans for the shift.

• Shift change station cleanup.

• Sleeping quarter assignments.

• Permissible and restricted activities and hours.

• Use of technology and electronics on-duty.

Any disputes shall be resolved by a supervisor.

1307.3.1   EATING AND DRINKING IN THE STATION

Food and drinks should be consumed only in the kitchen area and dining table.

With officer approval, food may be brought into the meeting room for special events. No food or

drinks should be in the dorm area or recliners at any time. Water is not considered a restricted

drink and firefighters are encouraged to stay hydrated, especially during the summer months.

1307.3.2   KITCHEN USE

Firefighters should clean as they go when using the kitchen. This means washing pots, plates,

cups, bowls, and silverware by hand and placing them to dry in the drying rack. Nothing should

be left for someone else to clean up.

The trash and recycling should be emptied regularly and not allowed to overflow their containers.

When association dinners and other events are occurring, it is advisable to use the dishwasher to

save time and water. Someone should be designated to unload the dishwasher.



Policy

1400
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Board of Directors General Provisions - 236

Board of Directors General Provisions

1400.1   SCOPE AND PURPOSE

This policy describes the general provisions of the Board of Directors in the administration of the

Graton Fire Protection Disteict

1400.2   GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. The Board shall be responsible for the Policies and Procedures of the District.

2. The Board shall evaluate these Policies and Procedures and revise them as needed.

3. The Board shall furnish buildings and real property necessary to house all firefighting
equipment, medical equipment and apparatus as deemed necessary by the Board.

4. The Board shall provide firefighting and medical equipment and apparatus in
accordance with the needs of the District as deemed necessary by the Board.

5. The Board shall require that all real property, equipment and apparatus be maintained
in good working condition at all times.

6. The Board shall appoint a qualified and experienced Fire Chief to administer and
operate the Department.

7. The Board shall determine the appropriate number of Members to be in the
Department.  The Board has determined that the current number of Members shall
not exceed 35.

8. It is the intent of the Board to ensure that an ongoing training program is established
and maintained.

9. In general, a Board Member should not respond to any fire, medical or other type of
emergency, unless requested by the Incident Commander, and shall not interfere with
the orderly fulfillment of the duties of any Department Officer, or other Members of
the Department.

10. The Board shall maintain all necessary forms of insurance coverage for the District
including hazard, liability, equipment, District vehicle, and worker's compensation.

11. The Board shall provide an adequate safety program and an effective written injury
prevention program.  As required by SB198, the Board has adopted the Graton Fire
Protection District's Health and Safety Manual, a copy of which is on file at the Station.

12. The Board shall have Membership in all organizations it deems necessary to provide
pertinent information to the District.

13. The Board shall hold regular Board meetings the second Tuesday of each month,
at 7:00 pm, at the Graton Fire Station.  In the event of a holiday, the regular Board
meeting shall be held on the following Tuesday of the month.  The agenda for regular
Board meetings shall be posted at the Graton Fire Station no later than 72 hours
prior to such meetings.  The Board President shall be responsible for developing and
managing the agenda for all meetings.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Board of Directors General Provisions

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Board of Directors General Provisions - 237

14. The Board may hold special meetings at any time.  The agenda for the special Board
meetings shall specify the time and place of the meeting. Special meetings shall be
posted 24 hours prior to such meeting.

15. Emergency situations involving matters upon which prompt action is necessary due
to the disruption or threatened disruption of public facilities may be held without
complying with the 24-hour posting.

16. The Board President may desire the services of a recording secretary for any of its
public meetings. The Board will reimburse the recording secretary for providing such
services as detailed in the Reimbursements Section of this document.

17. A Treasurer's assistant may be appointed by the Treasurer with the approval of the
Board.  The Treasurer’s assistant shall serve at the pleasure of the Treasurer and may
be discharged by the Treasurer. The Board will reimburse the Treasurer's assistant for
providing such services as detailed in the Reimbursements Section of this document.

18. Board meetings shall be conducted according to the latest edition of Robert's Rules
of Order, Revised.  District Policies shall prevail whenever they are in conflict with
Robert's Rules of Order, Revised.

19. A majority of the Fire District Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business.  The Board shall only act by ordinance, resolution or motion.  Except as
specifically provided to the contrary by statute or other law, a recorded vote is required
on each action.  (Health & Safety Code §13856)

20. The Board President shall serve as chairperson at all Board meetings.  The Board
President shall have the same rights as the other Members of the Board in voting,
introducing motions, resolutions and ordinances, and any discussion of questions that
follow these actions.

21. In the absence of the Board President, the Vice President shall serve as chairperson
over all Board meetings.  In the absence of the Board President and Vice president,
the Board Secretary shall serve as chairperson over the Board Meetings.



Policy

1401
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Closed Sessions - 238

Closed Sessions

1401.1   SCOPE AND PURPOSE

This policy defines the criteria for holding closed sessions of meetings of the Board of Directors

of the Graton Fore Protection District.

1401.2   POLICY

1. The Board may hold closed sessions for any of the following purposes

(a) To consider any personnel matters including the appointment, evaluation, or
dismissal of any Officer or any other Member of the Department.  The Board
must publicly report any action taken during the closed session by roll call vote.

(b) To confer with District legal counsel within the proper limits of attorney-client
privileges.

(c) To protect any records which are exempt from public disclosure.

(d) To confer with any District negotiator prior to the purchase, sale, exchange or
lease of real property in order to instruct the negotiator regarding the price and
terms of the transaction.

2. If the Board plans to hold a closed session, such must be duly noted on the agenda for
that meeting.  The reason(s) for such a closed session must be stated in the agenda.

3. When it is determined by a roll call vote of at least three (3) Board Members that a
closed session is needed during a meeting where no closed session was announced in
the agenda, the presiding Officer shall publicly announce the reason(s) for the closed
session prior to and after the closed session.

4. No matters other than those given in the reason(s) to hold a closed session shall be
discussed or acted upon during the closed session.

5. Actions taken in closed session shall be summarized in the public minutes of the
Board meeting as long as personnel and legal matters are not compromised; matters
discussed in closed sessionshall not be discussed outside of the closed session.



Policy

1402
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Limits of Board Member Authority and
Responsibility - 239

Limits of Board Member Authority and

Responsibility

1402.1   SCOPE AND PURPOSE

This policy defines the authority of the board memebers and thier responsibilities to the Community

in the performance of thier duties with the Board of Directors of the Graton Fire Protection District

1402.2   LIMITS OF AUTHORITY

1. The Board has broad powers as provided by law only when a quorum of the Board is
convened in a legally constituted public meeting.

2. The Board is the unit of authority.  Apart from the normal function as a part of the
Board, no Board Member has any individual authority and no individual Board Member
may commit the District to any policy, act or expenditure.

3. No Board Member shall enter into any business with the District.

4. No individual Board Member, by virtue of holding office shall exercise any
administrative responsibility with respect to the operation of the Fire Department, its
Officers and Firefighters.

1402.3   COMMMUNITY RESPONSIBILITIES

1. Each Board Member shall represent the entire population of the District.

2. Board Members shall ensure that all Board business is transacted in an open and
ethical manner.



Policy

1403
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Meeting Agendas - 240

Meeting Agendas

1403.1   SCOPE AND PURPOSE

This policy defines the order of business considered and the required structure of meeting agendas

for the Board of Directors of the Graton Fire Protection District

1403.2   REGULAR MEETINGS

ORDER OF BUSINESS

REGULAR MEETING

(a) Call to order

(b) Pledge of allegiance

(c) Roll call

(d) Additions or corrections to the agenda

(e) Closed Session

(f) Scheduled and unscheduled personal appearances:

During this period the Board of Directors will hear anyone who desires to speak on subjects not

listed on the agenda.  As a matter of policy, the Board will not make a decision unless it is of a

routine nature, which may be turned over to the staff for disposition.

Please limit your comments to five (5) minutes please state your name and address for the

minutes.

(g) Approval of minutes

(h) Bills and warrants

(i) Treasurer’s report

(j) Correspondence

(k) Fire Chief's report:  drills, alarms, etc.

(l) Purchase requests

(m) Committee reports

(n) Old business

(o) New business

(p) Adjournment

1403.3   SPECIAL MEETINGS

ORDER OF BUSINESS

SPECIAL MEETING

1. Call to order



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Meeting Agendas

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Meeting Agendas - 241

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll call

4. Unscheduled personal appearances:  During this period the Board provides anyone
who desires an opportunity to address the Board on any item listed in this
notice  Please limit your comments to five minutes.  Please state your name and
address for the minutes.)

5. Closed Session

6. (Subject matter of special meeting.)

7. Adjournment



Policy

1404
Graton Fire Protection District

Policy and Procedures Manual

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Debt Management Policy - 242

Debt Management Policy

1404.1   FINDINGS

This Debt Policy is intended to comply with Government Code Section 8855(i), effective on

January 1, 2017, and shall govern all debt undertaken by the Issuer.

The Issuer hereby recognizes that a fiscally prudent debt policy is required in order to:

• Maintain the Issuer’s sound financial position.

• Ensure the Issuer has the flexibility to respond to changes in future service priorities,

revenue levels, and operating expenses.

• Protect the Issuer’s credit-worthiness.

• Ensure that all debt is structured in order to protect both current and future taxpayers,

ratepayers and constituents of the Issuer.

• Ensure that the Issuer’s debt is consistent with the Issuer’s planning goals and

objectives and capital improvement program or budget, as applicable.

1404.2   POLICIES

A. Purposes For Which Debt May Be Issued

(i) Long-Term Debt.  Long-term debt may be issued to finance the construction, acquisition,

and rehabilitation of capital improvements and facilities, equipment and land to be owned

and operated by the Issuer.

(a) Long-term debt financings are appropriate when the following conditions exist:

• When the project to be financed is necessary to provide basic services.

• When the project to be financed will provide benefit to constituents over multiple years.

 • When total debt does not constitute an unreasonable burden to the Issuer and its

taxpayers and ratepayers.

• When the debt is used to refinance outstanding debt in order to produce debt service

savings or to realize the benefits of a debt restructuring.

(b) Long-term debt financings will not generally be considered appropriate for current

operating expenses and routine maintenance expenses.

(c) The Issuer may use long-term debt financings subject to the following conditions:

• The project to be financed must be approved by the Board of Directors.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Debt Management Policy

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Debt Management Policy - 243

• The weighted average maturity of the debt (or the portion of the debt allocated to the

project) will not exceed the average useful life of the project to be financed by more

than 20%.

• The Issuer estimates that sufficient revenues will be available to service the debt

through its maturity.

• The Issuer determines that the issuance of the debt will comply with the applicable

state and federal law.

(ii) Short-term debt.Short-term debt may be issued to provide financing for the Issuer’s

operational cash flows in order to maintain a steady and even cash flow balance.  Short-term

debt may also be used to finance short-lived capital projects; for example, the Issuer may

undertake lease-purchase financing for equipment.

(iii) Financings on Behalf of Other Entities.  The Issuer may also find it beneficial to issue

debt on behalf of other governmental agencies or private third parties in order to further the

public purposes of Issuer. In such cases, the Issuer shall take reasonable steps to confirm

the financial feasibility of the project to be financed and the financial solvency of any borrower

and that the issuance of such debt is consistent with the policies set forth herein.

B. Types of Debt

For purposes of this Debt Policy, “debt” shall be interpreted broadly to mean bonds, notes,

certificates of participation, financing leases, or other financing obligations, but the use of

such term in this Debt Policy shall be solely for convenience and shall not be interpreted

to characterize any such obligation as an indebtedness or debt within the meaning of any

statutory or constitutional debt limitation where the substance and terms of the obligation

comport with exceptions thereto.

The following types of debt are allowable under this Debt Policy:

•  general obligation bonds

• bond or grant anticipation notes

• lease revenue bonds, certificates of participation and lease-purchase transactions

• other revenue bonds and certificates of participation

• tax and revenue anticipation notes

• land-secured financings, such as special tax revenue bonds issued under the Mello-

Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, and limited obligation bonds

issued under applicable assessment statutes

The Issuer may from time to time find that other forms of debt would be beneficial to further

its public purposes and may approve such debt without an amendment of this Debt Policy.

Debt shall be issued as fixed rate debt unless the Issuer makes a specific determination as

to why a variable rate issue would be beneficial to the Issuer in a specific circumstance.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Debt Management Policy

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Debt Management Policy - 244

C. Relationship of Debt to Capital Improvement Program and Budget

The Issuer is committed to long-term capital planning. The Issuer intends to issue debt for

the purposes stated in this Debt Policy and to implement policy decisions incorporated in the

Issuer’s capital budget and the capital improvement plan.

The Issuer shall strive to fund the upkeep and maintenance of its infrastructure and facilities

due to normal wear and tear through the expenditure of available operating revenues.  The

Issuer shall seek to avoid the use of debt to fund infrastructure and facilities improvements

that are the result of normal wear and tear.

The Issuer shall integrate its debt issuances with the goals of its capital improvement

program by timing the issuance of debt to ensure that projects are available when needed

in furtherance of the Issuer’s public purposes.

The Issuer shall seek to avoid the use of debt to fund infrastructure and facilities

improvements in circumstances when the sole purpose of such debt financing is to reduce

annual budgetary expenditures.

The Issuer shall seek to issue debt in a timely manner to avoid having to make unplanned

expenditures for capital improvements or equipment from its general fund.

D. Policy Goals Related to Planning Goals and Objectives

The Issuer is committed to long-term financial planning, maintaining appropriate reserves

levels and employing prudent practices in governance, management and budget

administration. The Issuer intends to issue debt for the purposes stated in this Policy and to

implement policy decisions incorporated in the Issuer’s annual operations budget.

It is a policy goal of the Issuer to protect taxpayers, ratepayers and constituents by utilizing

conservative financing methods and techniques so as to obtain the highest practical credit

ratings (if applicable) and the lowest practical borrowing costs.

The Issuer will comply with applicable state and federal law as it pertains to the maximum

term of debt and the procedures for levying and imposing any related taxes, assessments,

rates and charges.

When refinancing debt, it shall be the policy goal of the Issuer to realize, whenever possible,

and subject to any overriding non-financial policy considerations, (i) minimum net present

value debt service savings equal to or greater than 3.0% of the refunded principal amount,

and (ii) present value debt service savings equal to or greater than 100% of any escrow fund

negative arbitrage.

E. Internal Control Procedures

When issuing debt, in addition to complying with the terms of this Debt Policy, the Issuer

shall comply with any other applicable policies regarding initial bond disclosure, continuing

disclosure, post-issuance compliance, and investment of bond proceeds.



Graton Fire Protection District
Policy and Procedures Manual

Debt Management Policy

Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2022/05/03, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Graton Fire Protection District

Debt Management Policy - 245

The Issuer will periodically review the requirements of and will remain in compliance with

the following:

• any continuing disclosure undertakings under SEC Rule 15c2-12,

• any federal tax compliance requirements, including without limitation arbitrage and

rebate compliance, related to any prior bond issues, and

• the Issuer’s investment policies as they relate to the investment of bond proceeds.

It is the policy of the Issuer to ensure that proceeds of debt are spent only on lawful and

intended uses.  Whenever reasonably possible, proceeds of debt will be held by a third-

party trustee and the Issuer will submit written requisitions for such proceeds.  In those cases

where it is not reasonably possible for the proceeds of debt to be held by a third-party trustee,

the chief financial officer of the Issuer shall retain records of all expenditures of proceeds

through the final payment date for the debt.


